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AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

1(a)
DIRECTORS' REPORT — JUNE 30, 2023

The Directors have the pleasure in submitting their report together with the financial statements for the year ended June
30, 2023.

Overview

The Company is now entering a new era, and Agria’s operating model will transition to become a sustainable grower,
farmer and property developer, built over three pillars: smart agriculture, smart farming and a sustainable smart village.

The underlying principle of smart agriculture is to transform our own agriculture and to train local farmers to grow fruits
and vegetables responsibly by promoting zero-kilometre farm-to-fork food to supply the local population, hotels, and
restaurants of Bel Ombre.

Smart farming activities will be based on the local production of deer meat to initiate a substitution process from
imported meat to locally produced and healthier meat.

These activities will positively contribute to the promotion of food security in Mauritius and the inclusion of the local
community in the region’s development.

The ‘Sustainable Smart Village' is a responsible master-planned project that intends to promote the regeneration and
conservation of the Bel Ombre area by developing responsible agri-tourism and property.

The process is end-to-end integrated, from training to market opportunities for local growers whilst positioning Mauritius,
particularly the Bel Ombre Region as a sustainable tourist destination,

Financial Performance

The Group recorded a profit after tax of Rs 70.4m compared to a loss after tax of Rs 15.0m in the previous year.

Cur Agribusiness revenues saw increases of Rs 17m due to the gradual recovery of the travel and tourism industry
driven by increased sale of deer meat and palms to the holels and leisure industry. However increases in operational
costs due to a high inflation environment and a one-off write off of deferred expenditure have impacted on cur results.

With the non-materialisation of a sale of land during the financial year, the Company showed a profit after tax of MUR
45.9m compared to a loss after tax of MUR 71.8m for FY 22.

Sugar and landscaping operations were negatively impacted by operational costs increases due to external factors
(fertilisers and transport). In contrast, smart farming operations managed to mitigate losses with measures to shorten
sales circuits and promote value-added transformed products.

Les Villas De Bel Ombre's performance remained satisfactory with increased sales of the number of units although
sales value was lower due to the more significant proportion of land sales compared to villas sales.

Outlook & Prospect
The management is actively working to transform Agria into a profitable company with reshuffled teams and operations,

integrated and harmonious property development that will enhance the value of land, our main asset, whilst regenerating
and consolidating its ecological value.

A progressive restoration of Agria's profitability will go through:

. The phasing out of non-strategic loss-making cperations.
* A debt reduction exercise through the sale of specific land assets
. The launching of a 15-years property development programme around the La Reserve Golf Links under a

sustainable smart living scheme.



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

1(b)
DIRECTORS’ REPORT - JUNE 30, 2023 (CONT'D)

Outlook & Prospect (cont'd)

Agria’s objective is to transform Bel Ombre into a world class leader in sustainable living and agri-tourism destination.
The ambition is to position Bel Ombre as a great place to live, work, play, learn and visit; a land where nature and
people thrive. The 2,080 Ha of unspoiled nature in the South West of Mauritius held by Agria intends to become the
reference in Sustainable Tropical “Art de vivre”,

On the properly development side, 2023 will see the completion of the infrastructure works for the Second Golf Course
Road thus unlocking potential value of the adjacent land.

Our Real Estate operations will be focused on fostering new marketing ventures, while continuing to revisit their
operational mode! to reduce costs. The focus will be geared towards creating a portfolio of Real Estate products. The
implementation of cost-cutting measures alongside a new sales approach should also result in the further decrease in
administrative, marketing and finance costs in the coming financial year.



AGRIA LIMITED

2(a)
STATUTORY DISCLOSURES - JUNE 30, 2023
DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company since July 1, 2022 and at the date of this report are:
Mr. Hector Espitalier No&l Non-Executive Director
Mr. Eric Espitalier No&l (also alternate to Mr Hector Espitalier Noél) Non-Executive Director
Mr. Philippe Espitalier No&l Non-Executive Director
Mr. Gustave Jean Pierre Lenoir Independent Non- Executive Director
Mr. Christopher Hart de Keating Independent Non- Executive Director
Mr. Jerome Guy Antoine Harel Independent Non- Executive Director
Mr. Thierry Montocchio Non-Executive Director
Mrs. Aruna Radhakeesoon {(Resigned on 30/08/2022) Non-Executive Director
Mrs. Pauline Seeyave {appointed on 31/08/2022) Non-Executive Director
Mr. Thierry Sauzier Executive Director
The names of directors of the subsidiary companies holding office since July 1, 2022 are;
Les Villas de Bel Ombre Ltée
Mr. Philippe Espitalier Noél MNon-Executive Director
Mr. Eric Espitalier No&l {also alternate to Mr. Philippe Espitalier Nog!) Non-Executive Director
Mr. Philippe Christopher Hart de Keating Independent Non- Executive Direclor
Mr. Thierry Montocchio Non-Executive Director
Mr. Sebastien De Robiliard Non-Executive Director
Mr. Anton De Waal Executive Directer
Mr. Johan Pilot Non-Executive Director
Mr. Thierry Raymond Sauzier Non-Executive Director
Les Villas de Bel Ombre Amenities Ltd Ltée
Mr. Hector Espitalier No&l Non-Executive Director
Mr. Philippe Espitalier No&| Non-Executive Director
Mr. Eric Espitalier Noél (also alternate to Mr. Philippe Espitalier No&l) Non-Executive Director
Mr. Philippe Christopher Hart de Keating Independent Non- Executive Director
Mr. Thierry Raymond Sauzier Non-Executive Director
DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS
None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual meeting have unexpired service contracts.
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
Totat remuneration and benefits received from the Company and its subsidiaries were as follows:
COMPANY SUBSIDIARIES
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Non-executive
Full-time - . - -
Part-time
- Hector Espitalier Noel 67.5 67.5 - -
- Eric Espitalier Noel 45.0 50.6 - -
- Jean Pierre Lenoir 45.0 56.3 - -
- Christopher Hart de Keating 33.8 56.3 - -
- Jerome Guy Antoine Harel 394 50.6 - E
- Pauline Sybille Cheh Seeyave 35.6 - - -
266.3 281.3 - -

Les Villas de Bel Ombre Ltée
No emoluments were paid to the directors.

Les Villas de Bel Ombre Amenities Ltd Ltée
No emoluments were paid to the directors.



AGRIA LIMITED

2(k)
STATUTORY DISCLOSURES - JUNE 30, 2023
DONATIONS
The Company and its subsidiaries have not made any donations during the year ended June 30. 2023 {2022: Rs. Nil}.
AUDITORS
The fees payable to the auditors, for audit and other services were;
2023 2022

Audit Other Audit Cther

Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Agria Limited 915 - 715 -
Les Villas de Bel Ombre Ltée 722 - 750 -
Jacotet Bay Limited 259 - 221 -
Les Villas de Bel Ombre Amenities Ltd 49 16 100 16

1,946 16 1,786 -

19 APR 20%%

Approved by the Board of Directors on.............................and signed on its behalf by:

’\ /

Director



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Section 75(3) of the Financial Reporting Act

Name of PIE: AGRIA LIMITED
Reporting Period:  1* July 2022 - 30" June 2023

Throughout the year ended 30 June 2023, to the best of the Board’s knowledge, AGRIA Limited (the
*“Company”) has complied with the National Code of Corporate Governance for Mauritius (2016) (the
“Code”). The Company has applied the eight principles set out in the Code and explained how these
principles have been applied.

SIGNED BY:

i 9 APF{ Zﬂ?fu 1 9 ,»5;}:’;?.' Wi,

Date: civviiieirresrrssetstsscatsisissesisesa Date: covcrivirrrsenionrranrsssssrasraae



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

4(i)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

AGRIA LIMITED, formerly known as Compagnie Sucriére de Bel Ombre Limited (the “Company™ or
“AGRIA") is qualified as a Public Interest Entity pursuant to the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and is therefore
required to apply the eight principles set out in the National Code of Corporate Governance for Mauritius (2016)
(the “Code™).

1. PRINCIPLE 1 - GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board assumes responsibility for leading and controlling the Company and is collectively responsible for
its long-term success, reputation and governance while meeting all legal and regulatory requirements. The Board
has applied this principie by:

a. Approving an organisational chart and a statement of accountabilities which wiil be uploaded on the
website of the Company (https:/agria.mu/y;

b. Adopting the Code of Ethics of Rogers and Company Limited (“Rogers”), the Company being
indirectly a subsidiary of Rogers. The Rogers’ Code of Ethics will be available on
https://rogers.mu/content/policies; and

c. Identifying the key senior governance positions within the Company, namely:

a. The Chief Executive Officer;

b. Chief Finance Officer and MLRO;

¢. Head of Agriculture;

d. Business Manager-Smart Farming, Hunting & Garage;

e. Project Manager and DMLROQO,

f. Manager- Land and Property;

g

h

i,

J-

Property Operations Executive;
Compliance Officer;

Data Protection Officer; and
Peopie Operations Manager.

Their position statements will be available on the website of the Company at https://agria.mu/.

The Board has further resolved that the Company would not adopt a board charter for the financial year ended
30 June 2023 as the contents of a board charter are already covered in the Company’s Articles of Association
and the prevailing legislation, rules and regulations.

2. PRINCIPLE 2 - THE STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD

As at 30 June 2023, the Company was headed by a unitary board which comprises nine directors. All directors
of the Company reside in Mauritius. The size of the Board is determined by the provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company, that is, a minimum of 2 and a maximum of 9 directors. A copy of the Articles of
Assaociation is available on the Company’s website at hitps://agria.mu/,

The Company has ensured that the Board includes an appropriate combination of executive, non-executive and
independent directors. The Board is of the view that the size and level of diversity is commensurate with the
sophistication and scale of the Company, The definitions of executive, non-executive and independent are in
line with those provided by the Code.



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
4(ii)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2.  PRINCIPLE 2 - THE STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD (CONT’'D)

Mrs. Aruna Radhakeessoon resigned as director of the Company on 30 August 2022, On 31 August 2022, upon
the recommendation of the Nomination Committee of Rogers, which oversees the governance matters of the
Company, Ms. Pauline Sybille Cheh Seeyave was appainted as director of the Company by the directors of the
Company to fill casual vacancy following resignation of Mrs. Aruna Radhakeessoon.

The profiles of the directors will be made available on the website of the Company at https:/agria.mu/.
Moreover, the list of directorships of each director will be made available upon request from the Company

Secretary.

The categories and respective balance of skills are set out in Table I.
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AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

4(iv)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS

ESPITALIER-NOEL Marie
André Eric
(64 Years)

Non-Executive Director

APPOINTED
01 November 2000

NATIONALITY
Mauritian

RESIDENCY
Mauritius

QUALIFICATIONS

» Bachelor’s degree in Social
Sciences (University of Natal,
South Africa)

» Master of Business
Administration (University of
Surrey, UK)

HAREL Jerome Guy Antoine
{65 Years)

Independent Non-Executive
Director

APPOINTED
28 February 2019

NATIONALITY
Mauritian

RESIDENCY
Mauritius

QUALIFICATIONS

o  University of Surrey —
MBA Administration

e University of Natal —
Bachelors in Agricultural
Management

ESPITALIER-NOKL Marie
Maxime Hector

(65 Years)

Non-Executive Director and
Chairman

APPOINTED
19 March 1997

NATIONALITY
Mauritian

RESIDENCY
Mauritius

QUALIFICATIONS

+ Member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales

* Leadership Course — INSEAD
Business School

HART DE KEATING Edouard
Philippe Christopher

{52 Years)

Independent Non-Executive
Director

APPOINTED
09 February 2018

NATIONALITY
Mauritian

RESIDENCY
Mauritius

QUALIFICATIONS

o  Université of Paris
Dauphine - ‘Maitrise
Audit et Contrdle de
Gestion’

o Diploma in Strategy from
HEC Paris

ESPITALIER-NOEL Marie
Hector Philippe
(58 Years)

Non-Executive Director

APPOINTED
24 April 2005

NATIONALITY
Mauritian

RESIDENCY
Mauritius

QUALIFICATIONS

* BSc in Agricultural Economics
(University of Natal, South
Africa)

* Master of Business

Administration (London Business

School)

LENOIR Gustave E. Jean
Pierre (78 Years)
Independent Non-Executive
Director

APPOINTED
06 May 2013

NATIONALITY
Mauritian

RESIDENCY
Mauritius

QUALIFICATIONS

s [|'Ecole Supérieure de
Journalisme of
Lille(France)



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

4(v)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

MONTOCCHIO Francois
Thierry

(50 Years)

Non-Executive Director

APPOINTED
28 August 2019

NATIONALITY
Mauritian

RESIDENCY
Mauritiug

QUALIFICATIONS

¢ Bachelor of Commerce —
University of Cape Town

¢ Post Graduate Diploma in
Accounting - University of
Cape Town (1997)

e Member of the South
African Institute of
Chartered Accountants
{since 2001)

¢  Member of the Mauritius
Institute of Professional
Accountants

SAUZIER Thierry Raymond
(55 Years)
Executive Director

APPOINTED
23 November 2021

NATIONALITY
Mauritian

RESIDENCY
Mauritius

QUALIFICATIONS

Paris Dauphine University -
Maitrise d’ Economie
Appliquée

Licensed stockbroker with the
Stock Exchange of Mauritius

SEEYAVE Pauline Sybille
Cheh (49 Years)
Independent Non-Executive
Director

APPOINTED
31 August 2022

NATIONALITY
Mauritian

RESIDENCY
Mauritius

QUALIFICATIONS

» Master of Arts — St
Catherine’s College,
University of Cambridge

s  Associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
4(vi)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2, PRINCIPLE 2 - THE STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD (CONT’D)

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Hector Espitalier-Noél who does not have any executive responsibilities. Mr.
Thierry Sauzier appointed on 24 November 2021, is the Chief Executive Officer, has executive responsibilities
and oversees the day-to-day management of the Company. The function and role of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are separate and are available on the website of the Company at https://agria.muw/.

The attendance of the directors of the board meetings held during the period 1# July 2022 to 30 June 2023 is
shown in Table 2 below.

Directors BM BM 13.10.22 | BM 28.03.23 | BM 06.06.23
29.08.22
Mr. ESPITALIER-NOEL Hector / ! / /
Mr. ESPITALIER-NOEL Eric / / / /
Mr. ESPITALIER-NOEL Philippe |/ / / /
Mr. HAREL Jerome / !/ / X
Mr, HART DE KEATING / X X /
Christopher
Mr. LENOQOIR Jean Pierre / / / /
Mr. MONTOCCHIO Thierry / / / /
Mr. SAUZIER Thierry / / / /
Mrs. RADHAKEESOON Aruna / / / /
(resigned on 30.08.22)
Mr. SEEYAVE Pauline (appointed | N/A / / /
on 31.08.22)

BM: Board Meeting
/: present
X: absent and excused

The Company has not constituted a risk and audit committee nor a governance committee as risk, audit and
governance matters are overseen at the level of the Board of the Company as well as at the level of the board
committees of Rogers.

The Company Secretary of the Company is Ms. Sharon Ah Lin. Her profile will be made available on the
website.

3. PRINCIPLE 3 - DIRECTOR APPOINTMENT PROCEDURES

The Board assumes the responsibilities for succession planning and for the appointment and induction of new
directors to the Board.

The Corporate Governance Committee of Rogers, acting in its capacity as Nomination Committee, recommends
the appointment of directors for approval by the Board or sharcholders where applicable. Details of the
nomination and appointment process are available on the website of the Company (https://agria.mu/).




AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
4(vii)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

3. PRINCIPLE 3 - DIRECTOR APPOINTMENT PROCEDURES (CONT’D)

The terms and conditions of the appointment of the Non-Executive directors are available on the website of the

Company (https://agria.mu/.)

All directors stand for re-election at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Company.

All new directors, upon joining the Board, attended and participated in an induction and orientation process.
They have also received a comprehensive induction pack from the Company Secretaries.

Directors are further encouraged to attend courses to refresh their knowledge and to keep abreast of latest
developments relating to their duties, responsibilities, powers and potential liabilities.

4. PRINCIPLE 4 - DIRECTORS’ DUTIES, REMUNERATION AND PERFORMANCE
Legal duties

All directors are familiar with their legal duties. They are required to exercise that degree of care, skill and
diligence which a reasonably prudent and competent director in his or her position would exercise. A director
may seek independent professional or legal advice, at the expense of the Company, in respect of any aspect of
their duties. The Board will regularly monitor and evaluate compliance with the Rogers’ Code of Ethics.

Conflict of interest

Upon being elected to the Board, directors are requested to declare their interest in the Company. Such interest
is recorded in an interest register which can be consulted on the website of the Company.

Where any director is conflicted by virtue of a particular transaction, the director declares his‘her interests and
does not take part in decision-making. The Company Secretaries maintains a conflict of interest register and
updates the register as and when required. The interest register is available for consultation to shareholders upon
request to the Company Secretaries.

Given that the Company is a not listed on any stock exchange, the directors of the Company cannot deal directly
in the shares of the Company.

Related party transactions

Related party transactions are adequately addressed through proper monitoring, approval and disclosure.
During the year under review, there was no related party transaction.

Information, information technology and information security policy

The Company is a registered controller with the Data Protection Office. In keeping with Data Protection Act
2017, the Company has endeavoured to reinforce the safety and security measures in place to protect personal
data it collects, stores and processes. It has thus adopted the following documents, which are available on the
website of the Company:

¢ A Data Protection Policy, which summarises the principles which will be applied by the Company when
processing data;



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
A¢viii)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

PRINCIPLE 4 - DIRECTORS’ DUTIES, REMUNERATION AND PERFORMANCE (CONT’D)

s A Data Protection Notice, which explains in detail to data subjects the purpose for and manner in which
the Company processes data, as well as the rights of data subjects relating to the data processed; and

» An Information, Security and Technology Policy which sets out the IT safeguards which have been put
in place to ensure security of data.

The Company has also adopted a Data Protection Compliance Manual, which describes the comprehensive
approach of the Company to personal data protection. Regular audits will be carried out to ensure compliance
with the said Manual.

Based on its operations, the Company evaluates the need for IT hardware and software to enable a secure, cost
effective and efficient management processes. These expenditures are evaluated on a case-to-case basis with
specific relation to the operation for which the expenditure is considered.

Board evaluation

No board evaluation and the independent director evaluation were carried out for the financial year end under
review It is earmarked that such exercise will be carried out in the next financial year to allow new directors
understand the board dynamics of the Company. Furthermore, the individual director evaluation is yet to be
finalised as appropriate timing and suitable technique to conduct same, remains to be agreed.

Directors’ remuneration

All Non-Executive directors are entitled to a director fee, consisting of a fixed yearly fee and an attendance fee.
The Chairman of the Board is paid a higher monthly fee. The Corporate Governance Committee of Rogers,
acting in its capacity as remuneration commitiee, reviews the remuneration of directors regularly. The

remuneration of the directors for the financial year under review is set out in Table 3 below.

Table 3: Remuneration of directors for the financial year 2022/2023

Name of Directors Attendance to | Remuneration for the

BMs year ended 30
June 2023

Mr. ESPITALIER-NOEL Hector 4on4 67,500

Mr. ESPITALIER-NOEL Eric 4on4 45,000

Mr. ESPITALIER-NOEL Philippe 4on4 0

Mr. HAREL Jerome Son6 39,375

Mr. HART DE KEATING Christopher 6oné 33,750

Mr. LENQIR Jean Pierre 6onb 45,000

Mr. MONTOCCHIO Thierry 6onb6 0

Mr. SAUZIER Thierry Raymond 4on4 0

Mrs. RADHAKEESOON Aruna (resigned on 30.08.2022) Son6 Nil

Mrs. SEEYAVE Pauline (appointed on 31.08.22) Jon4 35,625

The Company has not put in place any long-term incentive plan, share options or bonuses schemes associated
with the organisational performance.



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
4(ix)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REFPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

4. PRINCIPLE 4 - DIRECTORS’ DUTIES, REMUNERATION AND PERFORMANCE (CONT’D)

A directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy has been subscribed to and renewed by Rogers. The policy
provides cover for the risks arising out of the acts or omissions of the Directors and Officers of Rogers Group.
The cover does not provide insurance against fraudulent, malicious or wilful acts or omissions.

5. PRINCIPLE 5 - RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The board of directors is responsible for the governance of risks of Agria Limited (The holding company and
its investments) and for determining the nature and extent of the principal risks it is willing to take in achieving
its strategic objectives. The Board is committed to continuously maintain adequate control procedures with a
view to safeguarding the assets and reputation of the Company. Areas with high residual risks are continuously
assessed and reviewed with the assistance of the internal audit department.

Management is accountable to the Board for the design, implementation and enforcement of internal controls,
ensuring that the associated processes and systems are operating satisfactorily. The Board derives assurance that
the internal control systems are effective through the three lines model: (i) People, Process and Technology, (ii)
Management and Oversight and (iii) Internat Audit. Statutory auditors provide external assurance on an annual
basis.

The Risk Management and Audit Committee (‘RMAC”) of the parent company (Rogers and Company Ltd-
‘Rogers’) and the Board of Agria monitor the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.
The RMAC and the Board perform an oversight role to ensure that risks are managed effectively. Significant
issues including financial risks, critical policies, judgements and estimates are reviewed and discussed with the
external auditors. The appropriate financial reporting procedures are in place and arc operating.

The monitoring of the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems includes:

» A clear system of delegated authorities from the Board to management with certain important matters
remaining with the Board;

»  Regular review of results against budgets with executive directors and management, including areas of
business risk;

= Review of the strategic plans to identify risks to the achievement of objectives and, where appropriate
any relevant mitigating actions; and

= Legal and compliance risks which are addressed through specific policies and training including ethics
and data protection laws.

All significant areas of risk were covered and there were no major risks or deficiencies in Agria’s system of
internal controls.

Risk Management Process

The risk management process which is clearly defined, well established and embedded in our day-to-day
activities.

The existing group malpractice reporting policy sets out the process whereby information relating to
questionable practices within the group is disclosed in good faith by employees.



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
4(x)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

5. PRINCIPLE 5 - RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONT’D)
Employees are encouraged to raise such questionable practices to their direct reporting manager or to the Group
Chief Human Resources Executive at Rogers. The latter will report to the Group CEO who will approve any

required investigations.

Identification. analysis and evaluation of risks

Risks are identified, analysed and evaluated in light of the probability of occurrence and their likely impact as
follows:

*  Through regular management meetings whereby emerging/new and other operational and comptiance
risks are identified as well as activities and processes that gave rise to the risks;

= During audits carried out by internal and external auditors or appointed specialist consultants;

=  Financial and Strategic risks are identified at time of preparation of the annual budget and strategic plan;
and

= Self-assessment exercise performed by management.

Treatment, monitoring and reporting

*  Management devised appropriate mitigating strategies in light of the business model and set risk
appetite. Options available are discussed, evaluated and consequently, the Business Risk Register is
updated and reviewed. Implementation of remedial actions is performed and monitored.

»  Legal and regulatory compliance risks which are addressed through specific policies and training,.

= Regular reporting, monitoring and review of the effectiveness of health and safety.

=  Principal risks are reported by management to the CEO of Agria, to the RMAC and to the Board of
directors.

There were no material shortcomings in the design and effectiveness of internal controls, governance and risk
management reported during the year. Significant areas of risks were covered by internal controls and there
were no major risks or deficiencies in the system of internal controls.



'sdoaa eInynoLde Jo plaiA

unoedwir SUOIPUOD JIUC[IAD I9A3S PUR SPOOY]

‘AZajens ur papnpout saonoeld JUIND) e yse|} ‘sures [eruano; ‘Suluem [eqo|E ‘uolsols
"Pam3alAl Buiaq SJe SI9A0D JouRInsul pue ueld AINUNUOD SSAUISNY e [1OS ‘SIYZNOIp SE YOns SUOIIPUOD JIYJBIM UIAIS e a8uey) ajewi[)

SYSU [euonesdd()

“palonuow AJYSn S1 1G9P JO 1500 SANDS OJBISAE I e

"SAUT19B] JIPSID U0 SUGIIILNSAI Buipnoul Wwawadeurw $101Qap DI ‘suonediqo [eiouruy 123w 01 ANJIqEU] e Anpmbiq
'519858 pue] 91}193ds JO a[es y3noJy) asiosexs uoneziwndo 1gag e ‘s1nsad a1 Sunoedur s199p
‘pasonuowt A3YEn s1 1Gap JO [2AS] PUE 1S00 9ANI3Y2 aFeiane oy, e 10 1242 Y31y yum pa1dnod sajel 15211l U1 351y e IS

SYSLI [EIOUBUL]

*s1a10woud J3YI0 yim mo._.u._..EE:o:om .
'$59001d sisA|eur 1) JBW YL ITIOJUTIY o

‘safes dn paads 01 s1auped mau 3935 pue "SJUBAU2 MIU WOy sTuLaLo
s1auyred Jay1o pue [euordal yyum sdiysioupied Sunsixa Suoss ay; amuny e 210W YIIm UOUNAAWOY [220] 1I31IPUI PSBAIU]
‘pauue(d SJUIAD pUB SMOYS PBOY e "KMIQISIA JO 2B puE AJUIBLIIOUN IYJBIA e
‘2ouasaid [enSip pooueyuyg e 101 9Np SE[|1A JO SI{BS Ul 95BAII(J SUOIIPUOD JINIEA

-swwerdold juawdojaasp Ausadoad € jo Juysune| e
"puR| pue SE[[IA JO 3[BS JOJ UOIFaI 2IQUIQ) [2g 2Y) Ul SpPURI] UO 258I3A27]

“Buroud pue 3unsos janpoad "UOISS2I21 IMWOU0IS |8qo[F pue uonnadurod
J0 Mol pue 1d90u0d )10J-03-wire], Yum sdolo o1310ads uo snooj 01591enS e ‘uoneul Y31y SB yINSs ‘SI010B) [BI2A9S WOLJ Kureyrsaun
"Aemlopun st suonersdo Sunfew-ssof jo punoteuin] e patayns sey uswdojaaap Ausdoid pue ssauisnquBy e NUIOU0dY
2133)180)S
suopdE guyesnim pue sasuodsa J152)eNg 1X9)u0d pug suondrIrsaq SHSY

SMO][0] Se 31am paynuepl suonse Funediw Supuodsauiod fayl pue sysut redound sy,

sysny [edpurag

(QINOD) TOUINOD TYNYILNI ANV TONVNYIAOD MSIH - § ITIIONIId 'S

€707 ‘0€ ANAC GIANT YVIA THL 40 LYO4dITH IDNVNIIAOD ALVIOJI0D

1)y
SANIVIAISANS SLI ANV QALINIT VIYOV



"SUONR[NGaI PUB SMB| M3U JO UOHBIIUMNWUIOD)
‘suopie[ngar JueAsjal [[B pue
Ansnpu] Je3ng pue }20153A17T J0J SI9PIQ) UOIEISUNWY Yim Jouelduior)

“21n3nod ysit pue asueydios sjenbspeu]

‘[enuew sampadoid Suyeiado

pue saidijod [ewaiul ypm Ajdwos 01 aanjiey
‘paptaoid jou Suturer; pue

POIEDIUNWIWOI J0U SUOHEINGAI pue Sme| 0 saduey)

. sruenduwod

£L103e[n3aa

. pue [eSa]

sy st duerduro))

‘SR[[1A PAJAAI[3P Jo siredas

/Buiddeus uo snooj 03 Jwawpedsp suonerado ul 1asuidug 331§ asnoyu]
"SUOSBAI UOIB[A] ISWIOISND /[BIOIA WD 10} Palda)]e siedas

01 paredwod se §1500 3urdTeus ysinBulsip 01 UOIIEITFISSBD 1SOD JO UOISIADY

‘sasnuoad 1ayjo

‘WBISAS UsWaSeuRN 1o sanss) SudTeus Juia|osal ‘sefjIA Jo AISAl[ap Ul U0T)IBJSI)eSSIp

diysuone[ay 19WwoIsn)) © Y3lm paIouow A[[eULIQ) 2ousLadXa 1UWQISN) e sAe|ap JO }nsal © Se paljsnessip 8q AW SIFWOISN)  » J3WOISND)
‘peoIqe 10) Suiara] siuafel pue uoneindod Sursfe
*AemIapun st Suninjonnsal J0 2ousnbasuos e ‘syjuLiys jood Juare; ay) se xaduod

puE [9A3] JuswaFeULUL 1I01USS 18 Pajjy us3q sy suomisod £33 e A[uiseaIdul alp UDIIRINE PUR UOLIUSNDL JUS[R), = saduajeyo Juaje]

suonde Junesnim pue sasuodsai J159)en)g JX3ju0) pue suondLIdsa( . SHSY

(puo)) sysny [edursg

(Q.LNOD) TOULNOD TVYNUAINI ANV ADNVNUIAAOD NS - S ATJIDNIId S

€707 ‘0€ ANNC CIANT YVIA THL HOA LY04TH IINVNATAOD ALVIOLIO0D

(x)p

SIAVIAISANS SLI ANV QALINIT VIOV



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
A(xiii)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

6. PRINCIPLE 6 - REPORTING WITH INTEGRITY

The Board is responsible for the preparation of accounts that fairly present the state of affairs of the
organisation. The accounts adhere to IFRS, IAS and the Companies Act.

Having taken all the matters considered and brought to its attention during the year under review, the Board
is satisfied that the annual report and accounts taken as a whole are fair, balanced and understandable.

The fuil annual report will be uploaded on the website of the Company.
7 PRINCIPLE 7 - AUDIT
Internal Audit

Internal audit function which is outsourced to the Rogers, reports directly to the RMAC and ensures
adherence of processes and controls to the Rogers Guidelines & Policies Manual. One of the responsibilities
of the internal audit function is to confirm to the group RMAC the effective operation of our internal control
system. For this purpose, the Head of Internal Audit makes quarterly presentations to the RMAC and meets
with the Chairman of the Committee without the presence of management. Financial literacy and expertise
of the members of the Audit Committee are disclosed on the Rogers website: htips://rogers.mu/about-

rogers/our-team

The internal audit team also reports to the Board of Directors of Agria following audits carried out. Risk
based audits carried out during the financial year were in line with the established audit methodology and
covered Palm trees & pineapple cultivation, lawn activities and AML/CFT for property development.

Audit plan and department

Internal audit plan is prepared using a risk-based approach which inciudes the changes in risk profiles,
emerging risks and significant areas. The three-year plan includes holding and subsidiary companies but
exclude associated companies and joint ventures. The three-year plan is reviewed and approved by the
RMAC on an annual basis to incorporate the changing risk landscape.

Audit reports and recommendations are prepared following each audit and appropriate measures are then
taken to ensure that all recommendations are implemented. Status reports on management’s implementation
of internal audit recommendations are provided to the RMAC on a quarterly basis. Members of the internal
audit team are qualified or partly qualified accountants. The structure and qualifications of the key members
of the Risk & Audit Department is detailed on the Rogers website.

There were no major limitations or restrictions in the audit scope, access to records, management and
employees.

External Audit
Appointment
BDO was re-elected as external auditors on 19 April 2023 for the current financial year.

BDO has been re-elected as external auditor of the Company since more than 6 years. Rotation of external
auditors is as per legal requirements and is performed through a tendering process at group level.



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
4(xiv)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

7.  PRINCIPLE 7 - AUDIT (CONT’D)
Effectiveness

External audit process, planning, observations, recommendations, and accounting principles, critical
policies, judgements and estimates are evaluated and discussed with the Risk Management and Audit
Committee.

Non-audit services
For the year under review, there were no non-audit services rendered by the external auditor, BDO.

8. PRINCIPLE 8 - RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER KEY
STAKEHOLDERS

The Company is a subsidiary of Rogers. Communication with the shareholders and other stakeholders is
done mainly through the Audited Financial Statements, Meeting of Shareholders, meetings with investors
and the website. The relevant stakeholders have, as and when required, been involved in a dialogue regarding
the Company’s position, performance and outlook.

The Company's transition from the sugar industry into agri-business and real estate in a competitive context
underscores the importance of sustainability in its current business model. To guide its sustainability efforts,
the Company has adopted the Rogers' group sustainability framework, focusing on two main pillars:
environmental and social actions.

In the financial year 2022/23, the Company implemented various sustainability projects in Bel Ombre.
Notably, a small biological farm was launched in April 2023, where 18 local inhabitants received training in
biclogical agriculture and were provided with (.25 acres of land to cultivate their crops. This initiative
promotes environmentally friendly farming practices while supporting local communities,

On the social pillar, the Company has demonstrated its commitment by providing facilities for the operation
of an NGO (Caritas) and a social enterprise (Fey Palmis) in Bel Ombre. By offering infrastructure support,
the Company contributes to community development and welfare, aligning with its social responsibility
objectives.

Furthermore, the Company has made strategic decisions to select partners based on environmental and social
criteria for operations on its land. For instance, the Company hosts the glass recycling cooperative Plankton
in Bel Ombre, supporting circular economy initiatives and environmental sustainability. Additionally, the
Company collaborates closely with its sister company, Rogers Hospitality Operations Ltd, in Chamarel and
Bel Ombre, leveraging synergies to enhance sustainability practices across operations.

The Company recognises that sustainability is not only essential for its business success but also for the well-
being of its stakeholders and the environment. The Company actively shares its commitment to sustainability
with its staff, board of directors, and external stakeholders, fostering a culture of responsibility and
accountability. The Company acknowledges the transformative potential of sustainable practices in the years
to come, signalling its dedication to long-term environmental and social stewardship.

The substantial shareholders of the Company as at 30 June 2023 were Societe Belcase, Societe Rouillard
Frere & Cie and South West Tourism Development Company Limited, holding 20.25%, 5.02% and 52.34%
respectively of the stated capital of the Company.



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
4(xv)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Annual Meeting of Shareholders and other shareholder meetings are held in compliance with the Companies
Act 2001 and its Memorandum and articles of association. Moreover, the notice and proxy of such meeting
are sent in accordance with the Companies Act 2001 and its Memorandum and articles of association and
subsequently published on the website of the Company (https://agria.mu/),

In line with Principle 8 of the Code, the voting result(s) of any Annual/Special Meeting of Shareholders of
the Company will be made available on the website of the Company (https://agria.mu/).

The Company has no formal dividend policy. Payment of dividend is subject to its profitability, its
foreseeable investment, capital expenditure and working capital requirements. There was no dividend
declared and paid during financial year under review,

9. OTHER MATTERS

Pursuant to the Financial Intelligence and Anti Money Laundering Act 2002 (‘FIAMLA”) and the guidelines
issued thereto, the Company is categorised as a “real estate agent™ and is required to implement an AML/CFT
framework which includes:

(i}  the appointment of key officers;

(ii)  the development of policies and internal control procedures;
(iii) procuring training programs; and

(iv) being subject to audit and review.

The Company has appointed Mrs, Doreen Lam as Money Laundering Reporting Officer and Mrs. Smritee
Basant Roi as Compliance Officer. The position statement of the MLRO is available on the website of the
Company. In the same vein, the Company has approved a compliance manual, prepared to comply with the
requirements of the FIAMLA.

10. COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

Throughout the year ended June 30, 2023, to the best of the Board’s knowledge, the Company has applied
all the principles of the Code and explained how these principles have been applied.



SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

UNDER SECTION 166(d) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

In my capacity as Company Secretary of AGRIA Limited (the “Company"), | hereby confirm that, to the best of
my knowledge and belief, save for the filing of the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2023, the Company has filed with the Registrar of Companies, for the year ended 30 June
2023, all such returns as are required of the Company under the Mauritius Companies Act 2001.

e 19 &PR 2074



Tel : +230 202 3000 10, Frére Félix de Valois Street
Fax: +230 202 9993 Port Louis, Mauritius

www.bdo.mu P.O. Box 799

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Agria Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Agria Limited and its subsidiaries (the "Group"), and
the Company’s separate financial statements set out on pages 7 to 88 which comprise the consolidated and
separate statements of financial position as at June 30, 2023, and the consolidated and separate statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity and
consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated and
separate financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements on pages 7 to 88 give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at June 30, 2023, and of their financial
performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and comply with the Mauritian Companies Act 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (the "IESBA Code"). We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Director’s Report, Statutory Disclosures, Statement of Compliance, Corporate Governance
Report, and Secretary's Certificate but does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements and
our auditor’s report thercon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

BDO & Co, a firm of Chartered Accountants in Mauritius, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by
guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.



|IBDO

6(a)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D)
To the Shareholders of Agria Limited

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the
requirements of the Mauritian Companies Act 2001, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
Group’s and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate
the Group and the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's and the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with [SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's and of the Company’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by Directors.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and/or the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

BDO & Co, a firm of Chartered Accountants in Mauritius, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by
guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the 8BO Member Firms.
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6(b)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D)
To the Shareholders of Agria Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Cont’d)

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Mauritian Companies Act 2001

The Mauritian Companies Act 2001 requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report on the

following matters. We confirm that:

* We have no relationship with, or interests in, the Company and its subsidiaries, other than in our capacity as
auditor, and dealings in the ordinary course of business.

*  We have obtained all information and explanations we have required.

s In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears from our
examination of those records.

Mauritian Financial Reporting Act 2004

Our responsibility under the Mauritian Financial Reporting Act 2004 is to report on the compliance with the
Code of Corporate Governance ("Code"} disclosed in the Annual Report and assess the explanations given for
non-compliance with any requirement of the Code. From our assessment of the disclosures made on corporate
governance in the Annual Report, the Company has, pursuant to section 75 of the Mauritian Financial Reporting
Act 2004, complied with the requirements of the Code.

Other Matter

This report is made solely to the Company's Shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Section 205 of the
Mauritian Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's
Shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the Company's Shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have

formed.
SO o b
BDO & Co
19 APR JLIE Chartered Accountants
Port Louis, Shabnam Peerbocus, FCA
Mauritius Licensed by FRC

BDO & Co, a firm of Chartered Accountants in Mauritius, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by
guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS CF FINANCIAL POSITION - JUNE 30, 2023 7(a)
THE GRQUP THE COMPANY
Notes 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 1,135,513 2,362,626 1,120,712 2,333,517
Right-Of-Use Assels 8 103,272 99,246 54,828 51,454
Deferred expenditure 7 3,951 - 3,951 -
Investment properties 8 2,122,317 621,036 1,969,630 472,331
Intangible assets 9 392 133 392 133
Investments in subsidiary companies 10 - - 157,001 146,601
Investment in associated company 11 22,410 18,964 16,300 14,400
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 12 357,051 355,978 357,051 355,978
Financial assets at amortised cost 13 76,918 83,333 8,593 8,563
Investment in joint ventures 14 36,515 39,049 - -
3,858,339 3,580,365 3,688,458 3,382,977
Current assets
Inventories 15 489,235 623,643 5814 5,735
Consumable biological assets 16 61,692 61,160 61,692 61,160
Trade and other receivables 17 21,628 37,773 17,264 8,735
Amounts receivable from
group companies 18 18,990 7,533 19,355 12,291
Financial assets at amortised cost 13 31,890 18,210 - -
Prepaymenis 19 324 6,246 280 6,205
Other receivables 20 25,276 21,156 16,675 13,832
Cash at bank and in hand 36(b) 25,429 23,677 6,760 4,238
674,464 799,398 127,840 112,196
Total assets 4,532,803 4,379,763 3,816,298 3,495,173
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 21 73,260 73,260 73,260 73,260
Other reserves 2,329,215 2,343,311 1,890,618 1,893,006
Translation reserve 103,053 101,892 - -
Retained earnings 463,803 407,907 902,268 856,380
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
2,969,331 2,926,370 2,866,146 2,822.646
Non-controlling interests 200,584 180,538 - &
Totai equity 3,169,915 3,106,909 2,866,146 2.822,646

The notes on pages 12 to 88 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent auditor's report on pages 6 to 6(b).




AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION - JUNE 30, 2023 (CONT'D) 7(b)
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Notes 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 23 543,016 413,569 505,076 295,393
Retirement benefit obligations 24 74,560 115,356 72,338 110,596
Lease liabilities 6A 9,529 7,242 8,538 5,355

627,105 536,167 585,952 414,344
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 26 332,784 350,958 147,423 71,103
Amounts payable lo group companies 27 20,923 76,386 20,923 61,605
Deferred income 25 3,213 - 3,213 -
Lease liabilities BA 4,602 3.201 2,481 984
Borrowings 23 239,580 66,347 155,616 62,669
Bank Overdrafts 23A 134,681 239,795 34,544 64,822

735,783 736,687 364,200 261,183
Total liabilities 1,362,888 1,272,854 950,152 672,527
Total equity and liabilities 4,532,803 4,379,763 3,816,298 3,495,173

19 &b 7074

The financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on:

DIRECTORS' NAME

The notes on pages 12 to 88 form an inlegral part of these financial statements.

Independent auditor's report on pages 6 to 6(b).



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

8(a)

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue

Sugar, molasses and other proceeds
Proceeds from sales of real estates
Other revenue

Expenses

Operating and administrative expenses

Direct cosls - sales of real estates

Movement in consumable biological assets

Net impairment {gains)}losses on financial assets
Depreciation and amortisation

Operating loss

Other income

Increase in fair value of investment property
Finance costs

Share of results of associated company
Share of results of joint ventures

Other expenses

Profit/{Loss) before taxation
Income tax charge

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive incomel(loss)- (net of tax)

ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of post retirement benefit obligations

Deferred tax on retirement benefit obligations
Revaluation loss on land and buildings
Change in use and lapse conversion

Changes in fair value of equity instruments at fair value

through other comprehensive income

ltems that may be reclassifiad subsequently to profit or loss

Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income for the year

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Notes 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
2.19
30 16,594 22,464 16,594 22,464
31 461,168 324,046 . -
3 123,015 119,427 126,538 116,603
600,777 465,637 143,132 139,067
32(a) 341,551 256,514 263,289 180,374
32(c) 330,219 215,085 s .
16 {532) 7.897 {532) 7,897
17 {12,007) 4118 (5.428) 2,247
32(a) 37,646 24,829 20,368 20,646
696,877 508,443 277,697 211,164
(96,100) (42,808) {134,565) (72,097)
a3 17,604 32,548 18,501 14,362
8 201,879 21,529 203,400 .
34 (51,114) (26,114) (38,149) {13,162)
11 3,917 2,409 . 2
14 (2,534) (1,726) 2 z
5 (3,299) - (3,209) 3
70,353 {14,160) 45,888 {70,897}
28 . (887) . (887)
70,353 {15,047) 45,888 (71.784)
24 18,735 (5617} 18,143 (5,220
29 s 887 c as7
22 136,605 - 136,605 -
22 (170,509) - {170,509)
22 1,073 63,181 13,373 135,475
6,749 13,114 = -
(7,247} 71,565 {2,388) 131,142
63,006 56,518 43,500 59,358

The notes on pages 12 te 88 form an integral part of these financiai statements.

Independent auditor's report on pages 6 to &{b).



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONT'D) 8(b)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

Profitf{loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company 55,896 {28,789) 45,888 (71,784)
Nen-controlling interests 14,457 13,742 d -

70,353 {15.047) 45,888 {71,784)
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 42,961 37,781 43,500 59,358
Non-controlling interests 20,045 18,737 - -

63,006 56,518 43,500 59,358

The notes on pages 12 to 88 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent auditor's report on pages 6 to 6{b).
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AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

1
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2023
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Notes 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from /{absorbed by) operations 36(a) 46,914 166,138 (59,223) 17,111
Interest paid 34 (59,750} {(28,249) {38,072) (16,936)
Net cash (used in} / from operating activities {12,836} 127,889 (97,295) 176
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 5 {21,288) (78,269) (19,721) (87,129}
Purchase of intangible assets 9 {392) - (392) -
Leased assets acquired 8 - {422} - {406}
Purchase of investment properties 8 (126,713) - {126,713) -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 14,319 1,400 11,732 473
Interest received 940 2,262 940 -
Dividends received 11,004 600 11,004 600
Net cash used in investing activities {122,130} (74,429) {123,150) (86,462)
Financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 36{c) 302,680 44,150 302,630 -
Payments on borrowings 36{(c) - (12,123) - (12,124)
Payment of lease liabilities 36{c) (6,621) {2,863) {1,639) (812)
Advances refunded by related party - 7,668 - -
Loan refunded by related company {11,457) {38,958) {7,064) -
Loan received from related company (55,463) 50,000 {40,682) 50,000
Net cash from financing activities 229,139 47,874 253,245 37,0864
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 94,173 101,334 32,800 (49,223)
Movement in cash and cash equivalents
At July 1, (216,118) (310,514) (60,584) (11,361)
Exchange difference 12,692 {6,938) - -
Increasef{decrease) 94,173 101,334 32,800 {(49,223)
At June 30, 36(b) (109,252) {216,118) (27,784) (60,584)
Cash and cash equivants 25,429 23,677 6,760 4,238
Bank overdraft 134,681 238,795 34,544 64,822
(109,252) (216,118) (27,784) (60,584)

The notes on pages 12 to 88 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Independent auditor's report on pages 6 to 6(b).



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

21

GENERAL INFORMATION

Agria Limited is a public limited company incerporated and domiciled in Mauritius and is engaged in the cultivation of other
agricultural products, leisure aclivilies and real estate. The address of its registered office is John Kennedy Street, Rogers
House, Port Louis and the place of business is at Bet Ombre. On QOctober 22, 2019, the Company’s name was changed from
Compagnie Sucriére de Bel Ombre Limited to AGRIA Limited. South West Tourism Development Limited is the holding
company and the ultimate controlling party is Société Carédas. Both entities are incorporated and domiciled in Mauritius.

These financial statements will be submitted for consideration and approval at the forthcoming Annual Meeting of Shareholders
of the company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of AGRIA Limited comply with the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 and have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as issued by International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB} and Financial Reporting Act 2004. Where necessary, comparative figures have been amended to conform with
changes in current year.

The financial statements include the consolidated financial stalements of the parent company and its subsidiary companies
(The Group) and the separate financial statements of the parent company (The Company). The financial statements are
presented in Mauritian Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (Rs'000), except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared under histerical cost convention, except that;

(i) land and buildings are carried at revalued amount;

(i) invesiments in subsidiaries and associated companies are staled at fair value at company level;
(i) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are stated at fair value;

{iv) biclogical assets are stated at fair value.

{v) investment properties are carried out at fair value.

{vi) relevant financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost.

The Board of Directors has made an assessment of the Group's and Company's ability to continue as a going concern and is
satisfied that the Group and Company have the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. At June 30, 2023,
the Group has net current liabilites of Rs'000 61,319 (2022: Rs'000 62,711) and the Company had net current liabilites of
Rs'000 236,360 (2022: Net current liabilities of Rs'000 148,987). The Directors are of opinion that there is not a geing concern
issue given the availability of continued banking facilites, support from haolding company and future operations. Therefore, the
financial statements have been prepared on a going concemn basis.

Application of new and revised international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

In the current year, the Group and the Company have applied all of the new and revised relevant Standards and Interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee ("IFRIC") of the IASB that are relevant to its operations and effective for accounting periods beginning on July 1.
2022.

Basis of consolidation

The consclidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 30 June
each year. The Company controls an entity when it has power over the investee, is exposed to, or has rghts lo, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to use its power to affect those retumns.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Basis of preparation (Cont'd}
Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (cont'd)

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it considers it has power over the

« the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;
potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that the decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders' meetings.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using
consistent accounting policies. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies in line with those used by the Group. All intra-group balances, income and expenses
and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets {including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted
for (i.e. reciassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings) in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of. The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or jointly controlled entity.

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations effective in the reporting period

Amendments o IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment—Proceeds before Intended Use

The Group has adopted the amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment for the first time in the current
year. The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced before that asset is available for use, i.e. proceeds while bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management
Consequently, an entity recognises such sales proceeds and related costs in profit or loss. The entity measures the
cost of those items in accordance with IAS 2 Inventories.

The amendments also clarify the meaning of testing whether an asset is functioning properly’. 1AS 16 now specifies
this as assessing whether the technical and physical performance of the asset Is such that it is capable of being used
in the production or suppily of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2.

21

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations effective in the reporting period (Cont'd)

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment—Proceeds before Intended Use (cont'd)

If not presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income, the financial statements shall disclose the
amounts of proceeds and cost included in profit or loss that relate to items produced that are not an output of the
entity's ordinary activities, and which line item(s) in the statement of comprehensive income include(s) such proceeds
and cost.

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Coniracts—Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The Group has adopted the amendments to IAS 37 for the first time in the current year. The amendments specify that
the cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
contract consist of both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour or materials)
and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts {an example would be the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The Group has adopted the amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations for the first time in the current year. The
amendments update IFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of the 1989 Framework. They
also add to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, an acquirer applies |AS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition date a present obligation exists
as a result of past events. For a levy that would be within the scope of IFRIC 21 Levies, the acquirer applies IFRIC 21
to determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has cccurred by the acquisition
date.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that in applying the "10 per cent’ lest to assess whether to derecognise a financial liability, an
entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity {the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf.

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

Certain standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations have been issued that are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2022 or later periods, but which the Company has not early adopled.

Al the reporting date of these financial statements, the following were in issue but not yet effective:

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments affect only the presentation of liabilites as current or non current in the statement of financial
position and not the amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liability, income or expenses, or the information
disclosed about those items.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements—Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments change the requirements in IAS 1 with regard to disclosure of accounting policies. The amendments
replace all instances of the term ‘significant accounting policies” with ‘material accounting policy information’.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered together with other infermation included in an entity's
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective (Cont'd)

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors—Definition of
Accounting Estimates :

The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of accounting estimates.
Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”.

The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted. However, the 1ASB retained the concept of changes in
accounting estimates in the Standard with the following clarifications:

+  Achange in accounting estimate that results from new information or new developments is not the correction of
an error

<« The effects of a change in an input or a measurement technique used to develop an accounting estimate are
changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior period errors

IAS 12 Income Taxes —Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction: The amendment clarifies how a
company accounts for income tax, including deferred tax, which represents tax payable or recoverable in the future. In
specified circumstances, companies are exempt from recognising deferred tax when they recognise assels or liabilities
for the first time. The aim of the amendments is to reduce diversity in the reporting of deferred tax on leases and
decommissioning obligations, by clarifying when the exemption from recognising deferred tax would apply to the initial
recognition of such items.

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts

IFRS 17 creates one accounting model for all insurance contracts in all jurisdictions that apply IFRS. IFRS 17 requires
an entity to measure insurance contracts using updated estimates and assumptions that reflect the timing of cash
flows and take intc account any uncertainty relating to insurance contracts. The financial statements of an entity will
reflect the time value of money in estimated payments required to settle incurred claims. Insurance contracts are
required to be measured based only on the obligations created by the contracts. An entity will be required to recognise
profits as an insurance service is delivered, rather than on receipt of premiums. This standard replaces IFRS 4-
Insurance Contracts.

Amendment for which effective date has been deferred indefinitely until further notice
IFRS 10 Consclidated Financial Statements

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28): Narrow scope amendment address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and those in IAS 28 (2011), in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture.

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture {Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28): Narrow scope amendment to address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and those in IAS 28 (2011), in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associale or
joint venture.
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22

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Basis of preparation {Cont'd)

The direclors anticipate that these amendments will be adopted in the financial statements for the annual periods
beginning on the respective dates as indicated above. The directors have not yet had an opportunity to consider the
potential impact of the adoption of these amendments.

Where relevant, the Group and the Company are still evaluating the effect of these Standards, Amendments to
published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective, on the presentation of its financial statements,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of cerain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Nole 4.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings, held for use for cultivation of sugar cane and for other diversification aclivities are stated at
revalued amount based on periodic, but at least every 3 years, valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation for buildings and any accumulated impairment losses. Any accumulated depreciation at the
date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the
revalued amount of the asset,

All other property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at hislorical cost less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly aftributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured refiably. All repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial year
in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation are credited 1o other comprehensive income and shown as
revaluation surplus in shareholders' equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged
against revaluation reserve directly in equity. All other decreases are charged to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calcutated on the straight-line method to write off the cost or revalued amounts of the assets to their
residual values over their estimated lives as follows:

- Buildings 7 - 50 years
- Agricultural equipment 5-10years
- Transport equipment 5-10 years
- Furniture and office equipment 3-10years
- Non-sugar assets 5 - 50 years
- Bearer plants 8 years

Land is not depreciated.

Bearer plants have been estimated based on the cost of preparation of land and planting of sugar cane ratoon.

The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount.
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2.2

2.3

2.4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Property, plant and equipment {cont'd)

The carrying amount of an item of plant and equipment is derecognised (a) on disposal or (b) when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or diposal.

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount and are included in profit or loss. On disposal of revalued assets, the amounts included in
revaluation reserve are transferred to retained earnings.

Asset in progress relates to cost incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service a property. These costs
are capitalised and transferred to building when they are ready for intended use. As the asset is not ready for
intended use, it is not depreciated.

Investment properties

Investment properties, held to earn rentals/or for capital appreciation or both and not occupied by the Company, are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. An owned investment property is recognised as an asset

whan

(a) itis probable that the future economic benefits that are associated with the investment property will flow to the
entity; and

(b) the cost of the investment property can be measured reliably.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value, representing open-market value
delermined annually by external valuers. Changes in fair values are included in profit or loss.

The Company transfers a property to, or from, investment property when there is a change in use. A change in use
occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of
the change in use. For a transfer from investment property to inventories, the property's deemed cost for subsequent
accounting in accordance with IAS 2 is its fair value at the date of change in use.

An investment propenty is derecognised (eliminated from the statement of financial position) on disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no fulure economic benefits are expected from its
disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investment property is determined as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss {unless
IFRS 16 requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback) in the period of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets

{a) Trading rights
Trading rights arising on an acquisition of a business activity is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less amortisation. The trading rights are amortised over a period of 4 years, The

Directors are of opinion that the benefits arising from the acquisition of the business will accrue over a period of
4 years.

An impairment test is carried out annually,
(b) Computer software

Computer software is capitalised on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software and is amonrtised using the straight line method over its estimated useful life (3-5 years).
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2,

2.5

2.6

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Investment in subsidiaries
Separate financial statements of the investor

In the separate financial slatements of the investor, investments in subsidiary companies are carried at fair value
through other comprehensive income .

Consolidated financial statements

Subsidiaries are all entities {including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Greup. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transfemred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the fair value of the Group's
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Transactions and non-controlling interests

The Group treals transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For
purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the camying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases lo have control, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised other comprehensive income In respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Investment in associate

Separate financial statements of the investor

In the separate financial statements of the investor, investments in associaled companies are carried at fair value
through other comprehensive income.
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2.8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Investment in associate (cont'd)
Consolidated financial statements

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control, or joint control, generally accompanying
a shareholding between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

Investments in associated companies are accounted for using the equity method except when classified as held-for-sale.
Investments in associates are initially recognised at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net
assels of the associate less any impairment in the value of individual investment.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition and the Group's share of the net fair value of the associate's identifiable assets and
liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included in the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after assessment, is included as income in the determination of the Group's share of the associate's profit or loss.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the Group discontinues further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligation or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in associate. Unrealised profits and losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.

Where necessary, appropriate adjustments are made to the financial statements of associate to bring the accounting policies
used in line with those adopted by the Group.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Cilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in joint vantures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the paries sharing control,

Jaint ventures are accounted for using the equity method at Group level. Under the equity method of accounting, interests in
joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the company's share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses and movements in other comprehensive income. When the company's share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures {which includes any long- term interests that, in substance, form part of the
company's net investment in the joint ventures), the company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture

Unrealised gains on transactions between the company and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the company's
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred.

Financial instruments

(a) Initial Recognition

Financtal assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group and Company’s statement of financial position when
the Group and the Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D)

2.8 Financial instruments (Cont'd)

(b)

(c)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Financial Position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets at amortised cost,
Amortised cost

(i) Initial and Subsequent Measurement

These assets arise principally from the provision of goods and services to customers (eg trade receivables), but also
incorporate other types of financial assets where the objective is to hold these assets in order to cellect contractual cash
flows and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. They are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition or issue, and are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment.

(if) impairment

impairment provisions for trade receivables are recognised based on the simplified approach within IFRS 9 using the
lifetime expected credit losses, based on a provision matrix. The expected credit loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales of the 24 months before June 30, and the corresponding histerical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical losses are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to setile the receivables, The company has identified the GDP and the employment
rate of the countries in which it sells its goods and services to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rales based on the expected changes in these factors. During this process the probability of the non-
payment of the trade receivables is assessed. This probability is then multiplied by the amount of the expected loss
arising from default to determine the lifetime expected credit loss for the trade receivables. For trade receivables, which
are reported net, such provisions are recorded in a separate provision account with the loss being recognised within profit
or loss. On confirmation that the trade receivable will not be collectable, the gross carrying value of the asset is written off
against the associated provision.

Impairment provisions for receivables from related parties and loans to related parties are recognised based on a forward
looking expected credit loss model, using the general approach. The methodology used to determine the amount of the
provision is based on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial
asset. For those where the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition of the financial asset, twelve
month expected credit losses along with gross interest income are recognised. For those for which credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime expected credit losses along with the gross interest income are recognised. For those that
are determined to be credit impaired, lifetime expected credit losses along with interest income on a net basis are
recognised.

From time to time, the Group elects to renegotiate the terms of trade receivables due from customers with which it has
previously had a good trading history. Such renegotiations will lead to changes in the fiming of payments rather than
changes to the amounts owed and, in consequence, the new expected cash flows are discounted at the original effective
interest rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss (operating
profit).

The Company's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise Other financial assets at amortised cost, trade and
other receivables, laons to related parties and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial pesition,

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and bank overdrafis.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
2.8 Financial instruments (cont'd)
{c) Financial assets {cont'd)
Amoaortised cost (cont'd)

(i) Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituling an event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that financial assets that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

When there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor

. Information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking into account any collateral held by the
Company).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Company considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more {agging default criterion is more appropriate.

(iv) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occumred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

»  Significant financial difficulty of the clients.
O A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

»  The company, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the client’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the client a concession(s) that the company would not otherwise consider.

. it is becoming probable that the client will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

{v)  Write-off policy

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financiat difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

{vi) Fair value through other comprehensive income

The Group has a number of investments in entities which are not accounted for as subsidiaries, associates or
jointly controlled entities. For those investments, the Group has made an irrevocable election to classify the
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income rather than through profit or loss as the Group
considers this measurement to be most representative of the business model for these assets. They are
carried at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the fair value through other comprehensive income reserve. Upon disposal, any balance within fair value
through other comprehensive income reserve is reclassified directly to retained earnings and is not
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.8 Financial instruments {(cont'd)

ic)

Financial assets {cont'd)
{vi) Fair value through other comprehensive income (cont'd}

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment, in which case the fuli or partial amount of the dividend is recorded against the associated
investments carrying amount.

Purchases or sales of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised on settlement date with any change in fair value between trade date and setllement date being
recognised in the fair value through other comprehensive income.,

{iv} Derecognition of financial assets

The Group and the Company derecognise a financial asset only when the contractual rights 1o the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group and the Company neither transfer nor retain substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continue to control the transferred asset, the Group recognise its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retain
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continue to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised barrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial assel measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on
derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on
derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities as per business model test and contractual cashflows of the
liability, The Company's accounting policy for each category is as follows:

Bank borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of any transaction costs directly attributable to the
issue of the instrument. Such interest bearing liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method, which ensures that any interest expense over the period to repayment is at a
constant rate on the balance of the liability carried in the statement of financial position. For the purposes of
each financial liability, interest expense includes initial transaction costs and any interest payable while the
liability is still outstanding.

- Borrowings are classified as cumrent liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

- Trade payables and other short-term monetary liabilities, which are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

- 'The Company obtain deposits from customers which are used towards payment for the sales of goods.
Such deposits are treated as financial liabilities in accordance with IFRS 9. They are initially recognised at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The Company derecognise a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilties assumed)} is recognised in profit or
loss.
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2.10

2.1

2.12

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value being their issue proceeds net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs} and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer setlement of
the liability for at twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Consumable biclogical assets

Consumable biological assets comprise standing canes, palm plants, nursery plants and deer farming. Living
animals that are capable of biclogical transformation. Biological transformation comprises the processes of
growth, degeneration, production and procreation that cause qualitative or quantitative changes in a biological
asset. A biological asset is recognised when the Group controls the assets as a result of past events, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the fair value or cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. "A biological asset is measured on initial recognition and at the end of each reporting period at
its fair value less costs to sell,” They are stated at fair value less point of sale costs. The fair value of standing
canes is the present value of expected net cash flows from standing crops discounted at the relevant market
determined pre-iax rate. The changes in fair value of the biological assets are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Labour and field maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Inventories

() Inventory properties

Inventory properties is principally made up of property previously held as investment property which has been
transferred on evidence of change in use, start of development in view of sale. Inventories measured at the lower
of cost and net realisable value (NRV).

Principally, this is residential property that the Group develops and intends to sell before, or on completion
of, development.

Cost incurred in bringing each property to its present location and condition includes:

- Freehold rights for land
- Amounts paid to contractors for development

- Borrowing costs, planning and design costs, costs of site preparation, professional fees for legal services,
property transfer taxes, development overheads and other related cost NRV is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of the business, based on market prices at the reporting date, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(i) Other inventory

For other categories of stocks, cost used for consumption is determined on a weighted average cost. When
inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories shall be recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realizable value and
all losses of inventories shall be recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realizable value, shall be
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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(a)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Land conversion rights

Land conversion rights are in relation to the reform of the Sugar Industry in the years 2000, which necessitated
redundancy payments in the form of cash and serviced land, as well as capital expenditure for capacity expansion and
optimisation. These capital expenditure investments and expenses have been financed by debt. To assist the
repayment of these debts, Government granted a tax exemption to the Sugar Industry when converting agricultural
land into residential land in the form of Land Conversion Rights (“LCRs"). These LCRs are granted by the Mauritius
Cane Industry Authority (MCIA} based on the qualifying costs incurred by an entity. An LCR is recognised as a non-
current asset and is initially measured at fair value at the date on which the Company is entitled to receive those rights,
that is when there is reasonable assurance that the LCR will be received and all the attached conditions will be
complied with. LCRs are derecognised upon disposal {i.e. the date the recipient obtains control} or use for converting
agricultural land into residential land for land projects. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the LCR is included in profit
or loss,

LCRs are tested annually for impairment. When the carrying amount of the asset is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. LCRs are derecognised upon disposal
(i.e. the date the recipient obtains control), used internally for converting agricuitural land into residential land for land
projects or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition
of the LCR is included in profit or loss.

Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises of current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax

The current income tax charge is based on taxable income for the year calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on all temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, if the deferred income tax
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that al the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of reporting date and are
expected to apply in the pericd when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised fo the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using fair value model, the carrying amcunts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sales, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodies in the invetsment property over time, rather than sales.

Retirement benefit obligations
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution pian is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions intc a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assels to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service that
entitle them to the contributions.
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(b)

{c)

(d)

2.16

(B

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Retirement benefit obligations {cont'd)

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically defined benefit plans define
an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and
the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), is recognised immediately in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income shall not be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent period.

The Group determines the net interest expense/(income} on the net defined benefit liability/(asset} for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to
the net defined benefit liability/(asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined liability/{(asset) during the
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense/(income) is recognised in profit or
loss.

Service costs comprising current service cost, past service cosl, as well as gains and losses on curtailiments and
settlements are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Unfunded plans

Artisans and labourers of sugar companies are entitled to gratuities on retirement payable under the Workers'
Rights Act 2019. The obligations, which are not funded, are calculated by a qualified actuary and have been
accounted for in the financial statements,

Gratuity on retirement

For employees who are not covered (or who are insufficiently covered by the above pension plans), the net present
value of gratuity on retirement payable under the Workers' Rights Act 2019 is calculated by a qualified actuary and
provided for. The obligations arising under this item are not funded.

Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using Mauritian Rupees, the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ("functional currency"). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Mauritian Rupees, which is the company's functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at the year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and
qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate 1o borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in profit
or loss within finance costs.



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

26

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2,16

{il)

(iit)

217

2.18

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Foreign currencies (Cont'd)
Transaclions and balances (conl'd)

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entilies that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabiliies for each statement of financial position presented are transtated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

(b) income and expenses for each slatement represenfing profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates;

(¢) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity;
{d) land projects and share capital are translated at historical rate.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are accounted for as other comprehensive income,

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group and the Company review the carrying amounts of their tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revalualion decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase. Refer to
Notes 5,6,9,10,11 and 14)

Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group assesses whether a confract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee,
except for short-term leases {defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assels
(such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office furniture and telephones). For these leases, the Group
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assels
are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. if this rate cannot be readily determined, the
lessee uses its incremental borrowing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Leases (cont'd)
The Group as a lessee {cont'd

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

+  Fixed lease payments {including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incenlives receivable;

+ Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rale, initially measured using the index or rale at the
commencement date;

«  The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
«  The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

«  Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate
the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
{using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
whenever:

« The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

+ The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating
interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

+ A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at
or before the commencement day, less any lease incenlives received and any initial direct costs. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which
it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a
provision is recognised and measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset, the
costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, uniess those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assels are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company
expects to exercise a purchase opfion, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset.

The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.
The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position.

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, plant and Equipment’ policy.
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(ii)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Leases (cont'd)

The Group as a lessee (cont'd)

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account for
any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Group has not used this practical
expedient. For a confracts that contain a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor

Lease income from leases where the Group/Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight line basis over
the lease term, Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining the lease are added to the carrving amount of the underlying
asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature. The Group/Company did not make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor as aresult of adpoting IFRS 16.

Revenue recognition
Performance obligations and timing of revenue recognition
The Group derives revenue mainly from:

- sales of goods and services and
- sales of real estates

Sales of goods and services and

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods and services.

The group derives revenue from the proceeds of sugar and its related by-products and sales of other agricultural &
horticultural produce. Revenue is recognised at a point in time when control of the goods are actually transferred to
the customer. This is generally when the goods are delivered to the customer.

The Group/Company provides landscaping services lo clients, with revenue recognised on an over time
basis. The Group/Company recognises revenue based on stage of completion of projects for implementatiol
landscaping and as customer receive and consume the benefits in case of maintenance landscaping.

Revenue recognized at a point in time when control of the asset is transferred fo the customer, normally on
uncenditional exchange of contracts. There is limited judgement needed in identifying the point control passes. Once
the sale contracts are signed, physical delivery of the products to the agreed location or delivery of service has
occured, the Group no longer has legal possession, will have a present right to payment and retains none of the
significant risks and rewards. The revenue is derived from fixed price contracts and therefore the amount of revenue
is determined by reference to those prices.

Sales of real estates

The Group also derives its revenue from the sales of land and villas. Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entiled in exchange for those goods and services.

Revenue from the sale of land or completed property is recognized at a point in time when control of the asset is
fransferred to the customer, normatly on unconditional exchange of contracts. There is limited judgement needed in
identifying the point control passes. Once the sale contracts are signed, the Company no longer has legal
possession, will have a present right to payment and retains none of the significant risks and rewards. The revenue is
derived from fixed price confracts and therefore the amount of revenue is determined by reference to those prices.



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

29

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

219
(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D)

Revenue recognition (cont'd)
Sales of real estates (cont'd)

Where the conltract with the customer involves the sale of land and villas, revenue is recognized over time, i.e. over
the consiruction period using an input method based on the progress of works as certified by a Quantity Surveyor.
The property constructed has no alternative use for the Company, which has an enforceable right to payment for
works completed. The Company considers that one performance obligation exists for these types of contracts as the
goods and services are highly interrelated and are not capable of being distinet. For contract modifications where the
remaining goods or service are not distinct, the effect is recognized as an adjustment to revenue at the date of the
contract modification.

Determining the fransaction price

The prices in the contract are fixed and the amount of revenue to be eamed from each contract is determined by
reference to those prices,

Sugar, molasses and bagasses prices are based on the recommendations made to all sugar companies by the
Mauritius Sugar Syndicate.

Allocating amounts to performance obligations

For most contracts, there is a fixed price for each good or service scld. Therefore, there is little judgement involved in
allocating the confract price to each performance obligation.

Costs of oblaining contracts and costs of fulfifiing conlracts

Incremental commission paid in obtaining contracts of period longer than one year are recorded in deferred
expenditure and amortised based on stage of completion of the contract. No judgement is needed to measure the
amount of costs of obtaining contracts - it is the commission paid.

The Company recognises an asset from the costs incurred to fulfil a contract when the costs relate directly to the
contract, the cosls generate or enhance resources of the Company that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to
satisfy) performance obligations in the fulure and the costs are expected to be recovered. Such costs are included in
inventories.

Other revenues earned by the Group are recognised on the following basis:

« Interest income - calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently became credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

« Other income are recognised on an accrual basis unless colleclibility is in doubt where it is then recognised on a
cash basts.

+  Rental income arising from operating leases - on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contract assets

A confract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due} from the customer. Iif a customer pays consideration before the
Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.
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2.19

2.20

2.2

2.22

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Revenue recognition (cont'd)
Costs of obtaining contracts and costs of fulfilling contracts (cont'd)

Contract liabilities {cont'd}

The Group also derives income from sales of land oplions. A land option gives the customer the option to buy a
property in the future against an upfront payment. The proceeds are treated as a contract liability as no performance
obligation is delivered at that time until the customer buys the land or the option period expires.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
which will probably result in an outflow of resources that can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to setlle the provision, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Deferred income

Deferred income comprises of advance payment on rentals and are reteased to profit or loss in the remaining lease
period, that is, 5 years.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs direcily attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalised
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Group's aclivities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk and price risk)}, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effect of the Group's financial performance.

A description of the significant risk factors is given below together with the risk management policies applicable.

{a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in the market prices. Market risk to which the Group is exposed the mainly currency risk and risk.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd)

(a} Market risk {cont'd)

(i) Currency risk

The Group includes a subsidiary whose functional currency is the USD Dollars and is therefore exposed to
currency risk. Foreign exchange risk arises from the commercial transactions and the recognised assets and
liabilities. The currency exposure arising from the net assets is primarily from borrowings denominated in
usD.

Management has set up a policy to require the Company to manage its foreign exchange risk exposure with
treasury.

The currency profile of the Group and the Company financial assels and liabilities is summarised below:

2023

THE GROUP Financial assets

usb EURO MUR Total

Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

At amortised cost
Financial assets at amortised cost (Note13) 108,808 - - 108,808
Loan to related parties (Note 18) - - 18,990 18,990
Trade receivables (Note 17) 1,886 - 19,742 21,628
Other receivables (Note 20) 8,601 - 16,675 25,276
Cash and Bank {Note 37(b) 18,669 - 6,760 25,429

137,964 - 62,167 200,131
At Fair Value through OCI
investment in joint venture (Note 14) 36,515 - : 36,515
Financial assets at fair value through OCI
(Releg2) - - 357,051 357,051

36,515 - 357,051 393,566
Total financial assets 174,479 - 419,218 593,697
2023
Financial liabilities
UsD EUROQ MUR Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

Borrowings {Note 23) 121,904 - 660,692 782,596
Bank overdrafts (Note 23A) 100,137 . 34,544 134,681
Lease liabilities (gross) . . 16,264 16,294
Trade and other payables (Note 26) 185,041 112,216 297,257
Amount payable to related party {Note 27) - R 20,923 20,923

407,082 - 844,669 1,251,751
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd)
{a) Market risk {cont'd)
{i) Currency risk (cont'd}
2022
THE GROUP Financial assets
usp EURO MUR Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At amortised cost
Financial assets at amortised cost (Note13) 101,543 - - 101,543
Loan to related parties (Note 18) - - 7,533 7,533
Trade receivables (Note 17) 26,791 - 10.982 37773
Other receivables (Note 20} 7.324 - 13,832 21,156
Contract assets (Note 32(b) 19,439 1,895 2,343 23,677
155,097 1,895 34,690 191,682
At Fair Value through OCI
Investment in joint venture (Note 14) 39,049 - = 39,049
Financial assets at fair vatue through OCl
(Note 12) = - 355,978 355,978
39,049 - 356,978 395,027
Total financial assets 194,146 1,895 390,668 586,709
2022
Financial liabilities
UsD EURO MUR Total
Rs'000 Rs'D00 Rs'000 Rs'000
Borrowings (Note 23) 121,854 - 358,062 479,916
Bank overdrafts (Note 23A} 174,073 : 64,822 239,795
Lease liabilities (gross) - s 31,258 31,258
Trade and other payables (Note 26) 68.980 1‘130 195.976 256,086
Amount payable to related party (Note 27) 37,922 - 38,464 76,386
403,729 1,130 688,582 1,093,441
THE COMPANY
2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
Financial assets
At amortised cost
Financial assets at amortised cost (Note13) 8,593 8,563
Receivable from related parties (Note 18) 19,355 7.533
Trade receivables (Note 17) 17,264 8,735
QOther receivables (Note 20) 16,675 13,832
Cash and Bank (Note 37(b) 6,760 4,238
68,647 42,901
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D}
3.1 Financial risk factors {cont'd)
(a) Market risk (cont'd}
(i} Currency risk (contd)
THE COMPANY (CONT'D
2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (Note 23) 660,692 359,019
Bank overdrafts (Note 23A) 34,544 64,822
Lease liabilities {gross) 12,647 5,023
Trade and other payables (Note 26) 137,758 60,387
Amount payable to related party (Note 27) 20,923 61,605
866,564 550,856

()

{ii} Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Group and classified

on the statement of financial position as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Investment in
one entity accounts for 99.84% of its investment in financial assets.

Sensitivity analysis

The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases in the fair value of the investments on the
Group's equity. The analysis is based on the assumption that the fair value had increased/decreased by 5%.

Impact on equity

Categories of investments: 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 17,853 17,799

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from long term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. To mitigate the interest rate risk, the company has the right for early
repayment.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for the non-derivative
instruments at the reporting date. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding for the whole year. Financial assets are either interest
free or bear a fixed rate of interest; therefore, they are not exposed to interest rate risk. For instance, the financial
assets as shown in the categories of financial instruments, with the exception of loans and advances, are interest
free.

At June 30, 2023, if interest rates on borrowings and bank overdtafts had been 10 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been Rs'000 5,910 (2022: Rs'000 597)
lower/higher for the Group and Rs'000 7.797 (2022: Rs'000 352) fowerfhigher for the Company, mainly as a result
of higherflower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.



AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

34
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
3.1 Financial risk factors {cont'd)
(b) Cash flow interest rate risk (cont'd)
THE GROUP Carrying amounts at impact on
June 30, Interest rate post-tax profit
Rupees Uuspo Rupees UsSD Rupees UsD
Rs'000 Rs'000 % % Rs'000 Rs'000
2023
Borrowings
Bank overdrafts 64,822 174,973 8.50% 6.75% 54 145
Bank borrowings 336,602 121,903 8.50% 8.75% 279 101
Repo rate + 3% + 1mth
Other loans 324,090 - 1.65% LIBOR 269 -
725,514 296,876 602 246
Carrying amounts at Impact on
June 30, Interest rate post-tax profit
Rupees UsD Rupees UsD Rupees UsSD
Rs'000 Rs'000 % % Rs'000 Rs'000
2022
Borrowings
Bank overdrafts 64,821 174,974 4.25% 3.09 54 145
Bank borrowings 178,061 44,150 4.25% 4.625 148 37
Other loans 180,000 77,704 1.65% LIBOR 149 64
422,882 296,628 351 246
THE COMPANY Carrying Impact on
amounts at Interest post-tax
June 30, rate profit
Rs'000 % Rs'000
2023
Borrowings
Bank overdrafts 34,544 6.75% 29
Bank borrowings 336,602 6.75% 279
Repo rate +
Other loans 324,090 1.65% 269
695,236 577
2022
Borrowings
Bank overdrafts 64,822 4.25% 54
Bank borrowings 178,061 4.25% 148
Repo rate +
Other loans 180,000 1.65% 149
422,883 351
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd)

{c)

{d)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash flows of financial assets at amortised cost, at
fair value through other comprehensive income and deposits with banks and financial institutions as well as
credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables,

For banks and financial institutions, only parties with good reputation are accepted.

Risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience
and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal ratings in accordance with limits set by the
board. The compliance with credit limits by customers is regularly monitored by management.

The Group sets payment terms such that cash is received in a timely manner to minimise credit risk. There are
no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers or corporate.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivery of cash or ancther financial asset.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit market positions.

The Group aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The table below analyses the group's financial exposure info relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of reporling date to the contractual maturity date.

Less than Between 1 Between 2 Between 3 Over
THE GROUP 1 year and2years and 3years and 5 years 5 years
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At June 30, 2023
Bank borrowings® 11,616 67,846 33,591 204,403 57,086
Other loans 144,000 - - - 180,090
Bank overdrafts 134,681 - - - -
Trade and other payables 291,257 - - - -
Amounts payable to group
companies 20,923 - - - -
Lease liabilities* 4,049 3,832 3,455 4,010 948
612,526 71,678 37,046 208,413 238,124
At June 2022
Bank borrowings” 19,732 19,732 19,732 39,464 143,800
Other loans 50,284 78,027 652 130,058 -
Bank overdrafis 239,795 - S S -
Trade and other payables 266,376 - - -
Amounts payable to group
companies 76,386 - s e &
Lease Habilities* 5,162 4,741 4,741 8,852 9,501
657,735 102,500 25,125 178,374 153,301

* Bank borrowings and lease liabilities are at gross amount.
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3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd)
{d) Liguidity risk {cont'd}
THE COMPANY Less than Between 1 Between 2 Between 3 Over
1 year and 2years and 3 years and 5 years 5 years
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs"000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At June 30, 2023
Bank borrowings* 144,000 4,469 5,200 141,511 28,910
Other loans 11,616 25,418 28,410 62,892 208,266
Bank overdrafts 34,544 - - - -
Trade and other payables 137,758 - - - -
Amounts payable to group companies 20,923 - - - -
Lease liabilities” 3,082 2,947 2,803 3,576 572
351,923 32,834 36,413 207,979 237,748
At June 30, 2022
Bank borrowings*® 12,669 13.538 14,366 28,269 109,220
QOther loans 50,000 323 652 129,025 -
Bank overdrafts 64,822 - - g -
Trade and other payables 60,387 3 - - S
Amounts payable to group companies 61,605 - o o o
Lease liabilities" 700 743 789 1,696 1.096
250,183 14,604 15,807 158,990 110,316
*Bank borrowings and lease liabilities represent the gross amount
3.2 Fair value estimation
The fair value of financial statements traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occuring
markel transactions on an arm's length basis. The quoted market prices used in the financial assets held by the group is
the current bid. These instruments are included in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily quoted
equity investments classified as trading securities or available-for-sale.
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded on an active market is determined using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximises the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as litlle as
possible on specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument
is included in level 2.
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each end
of reporting date. The nominal values less any estimated credit adjustments for financial assets and liabilities with a
maturity of less than one year are assumed to approximate their fair values.
3.3 Biological assels
The Group is exposed to fluctuation in the price of sugar and the incidence of exchange rate. This risk affecls both the
crops and the fair value of biological assets. This risk is not hedged.
3.4 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:
. to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concem so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

5 to provide an adequate return te shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of
risk.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONT'D)

3.4 Capital risk management {cont'd}

4.1

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group manages the capilal structure and makes
adjusiments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to sharehoiders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistently with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-lo-adjusted capital ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt to capital. Net debt is calculated as total debls (as shown in the siatement of
financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (that is share
capital, retained eamings and revaluation reserves).

Duwring 2023, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from 2022, was to monitor the debt to capital ratio in order to
secure access to finance at a reasonable cost. The debt-to-capital ratios at June 30, 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs"000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

Lease liabilities (note 6A) 14,131 10,443 11,019 6,339
Borrowings (note 23) 782,596 479,916 660,692 358,062
Bank overdraft (note 23A) 134,681 239,795 34,544 64,822
Total debt 931,408 730,154 706,255 429,223
Less cash and cash equivalents (note 36(b) (25,429) {23,677) (6,760) (4,238)

905,979 706,477 699,495 424,985
Total equity 3,169,915 3,106,909 2,866,146 2,822 646
Debt-to-capital ratio 29% 23% 24% 15%

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital risk management during the year.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evalualed and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical acecounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulling accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimales and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

{a) Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of defaull and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of
each reporiing period.

{b} Consumabie biological assets

The fair value of consumable biological assets have been arrived at by discounting the present value (PV) of the
expected net cash flows from biological assets at the relevant market determined pre-tax rate.

The expected cash flows of the standing canes have been computed by estimating the expected crop and the
sugar extraction rate and the forecasts of sugar prices which will prevail in the coming year. The harvesting costs
and other direct expenses are based on the yearly budgets of the Group.
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4.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions {cont'd)

(b)

{c)

(d)

(e)

(f

{9)

Consumable biological assets (cont'd)

The expected cash flow of palm have been computed by estimating expected crop and the expected market
price at which the palm will be sold in the coming year. The direct costs are based on the yearly budget prepared
by the Company.

The expected cash flow for deer is based on the estimated weight of meat to be sold from the estimate herg of
deer and the estimated selling price less 15% shares for hunters.

The expected cash flow from the sales of grass is based on area of plantation valued at net estimated
contribution per m2.

The expected cash flow from the sales of plant is based on future sales price of different type of plants available
for sales.

Pension benefits

The present value of the pension obligations depend on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial
basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost {income) for pensions
include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of pension
obligations.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should
be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settie the
pension obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in past on current market conditions. Additional
information is disclosed in Note 24.

Revaluation of property, ptant and equipment and investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in profit or
loss, In addition, it measures the land at revalued amount with changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income. The Group engaged independent valuation specialists to determine fair value as at June
30, 2022. For the investment property the valuer used open market value.

Eair value of securities not quoted in an active market

The fair value of securities not quoted in an aclive market may be determined by the Group using valuation
techniques including earnings, net asset value or discounted cash flows, whichever is considered to be
appropriate. The Group would exercise judgement and estimates on the quantity and quality of pricing sources
used. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Joint arrangement

In determining the type of joint arrangement in which it is involved, management considers its right and
obligations arising from the arrangement. The entity assesses its right and obligations by considering the
structure and the legal form of the arrangement, the terms agreed by the parties in the contractual arrangement
and, where relevant, other facls and circumstances,

Limitation of sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis in respect of markel risk demonstrates the effect of a change in a key assumption while other
assumptions remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the assumptions and other factors. It
should also be noted that these sensivities are non-linear and larger or smaller impacts should not be
interpolated or extrapolated from these resuits.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (cont'd

(9

(h)

(M)

1))

(k)

)

(m)

(n)

Limitation of sensitivity analysis {cont'd)

Sensitivity analysis does not take into consideration that the Group's assets and liabililies are managed. Other
limitations include the use of hypothetical market movements to demonstrate potential risk that only represent
the Group's view of pessible near-term market changes that cannot be predicted with any certainty.

Asset lives and residual values

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over its useful life taking into account residual values, where
appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary
depending on a number of factors. In reassessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation,
product life cycles and maintenance programmes are taken into account. Residual value assessments
consider issues such as future market conditions. the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values.
Consideration is also given to the extent of current profits and losses on disposal of similar assets.

Depreciation policies

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The
residual value of an asset is the estimated net amount that the Group would currently obtain from disposal of
the asset, if the asset were already of the age and in condition expected at the end of its useful life.

The directors therefore make estimates based on historical experience and use best judgement to assess the
useful lives of assets and to forecast the expected residual values of the assets at the end of their expected
useful lives.

Deferred tax on revaluation of investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax labilities arising from investment properties the directors reviewed
the Group's invesiment property portfolic and concluded that the Group's investment properties are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time. Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred taxation on investment
properties, the directors have determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.

Contract cosis

Contract costs are usually recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss in the accounting period
in which the work to which they relate is performed. Where the contract costs attributable to the contract can
be clearly identified but for which no invoice has been received yet, an estimate of cost is provided for in the
financial year in which the cost has been incurred.

Provision in respect of contracts costs are based on best available estimates which may fluctuates. The
company reviews and where necessary revises the estimates of the contract costs as the contract progresses

Identification of performance obligations

Management uses judgement in identifying whether the promises goods or services in a contract represent
distinct performance obligations.

Leases

In determining the lease term for the building being rented, management considers the broader economics of
its arrangement with the lessor, including economic penalties for the lessor and the Company if the Company
were to vacate the leased premise.

Incremental borrowing rate

The present value of lease payment is determined using an incremental borrowing rate, which is the rate that
the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term and with similar security, the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The directors use a
certain degree of judgement in determining the incremental borrowing rate.
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AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 44

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

(i)  The Group's and Company's freehold land and buildings as well as buildings on leasehold land are stated at their
revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses. The fair value measurements were performed in accordance with the
'‘RICS Valuation Standards’ by accredited independent valuers namely Ramiah-Isabel Consultancy Ltd. The valuers
have the appropriate qualifications and experience in the fair value measurements of properties in the relevant
locations.

Land and buildings leased to subsidiaries within the Group are valued every 3 to 4 years unless there is evidence that
the fair value of the assets differs malerially from the carrying amount. The valuation of these properties was
performed as at 30 June 2023.

The fair value of the land and buildings has been assessed on the basis of its market value, being the estimated
amount for which the property could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length
transaction and taking into account the current market conditions and similar transactions undertaken in recent years.
In arriving at the market value, the sales comparison approach has been used for the land, which is based on recent
transactions for similiar properties, and the depreciated replacement cost approach has been used for the buildings
{including production infrastructure) which estimates the value by computing the current cost of replacing a property
less any depreciation resulting from physical. functional and economic obsolescence faclors. Land and buildings that
are leased have been fair valued using the income approach by reference to the capitalisation rate on net operating
income or based on discounted cash flows, the highest and best use of the properties being their current use. The
revaluation surplus was credited 1o revaluation reserves.

(i) If the assets were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would have been as follows:

2023 2022
Land Buildings Total Land Buildings Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
THE GROUP
Cost 38,104 53,834 91,938 38,104 36,434 74,538
Accumulated depreciation - {31,833) (31,833} - {23,091} {23,091)
Net book value 38,104 22,001 60,105 38,104 13,343 51,447
THE COMPANY
Cost 38,104 53,834 91,938 38,104 36,434 74,538
Accumulated depreciation - (31,833) {31,833) - (23,091) (23,091}
Net book value 38,104 22,001 60,105 38,104 13,343 51.447

(i) The above property, plant and equipment have been pledged as security for the bank overdrafts and the bank loans
of the group.

(iv) Details of Group/Company's freehold land and buildings measured at fair value and information about the fair value

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Level 3
Freehold land 1,008,600 2,136,043 1,003,600 2,136,043
Buildings 84,338 81,284 75,551 61,253
1,092,938 2,217,327 1,079,151 2,197,296
(v} Bearer biological assets represents plantation expendilure for coffee thal have an expected live cycle of

approximately 20 years. Such biological assets are measured at cost (direct costs incurred including cost of purchase
if any) less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

Information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs

Level 3 Significant unobservable input Range of unobservable inputs
Land Price per Arpent Rs.100,000 to Rs.12.25m
Building Price per square metre Rs.1,500 to Rs.75,000

Significant increases/decreases in estimated price per arpent/per square metre in isolation would result in a significantly
higherflower fair value.

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Significant Inter-relationship between key unobservable

unobservable inputs inputs and fair value measurements
Land: Sales Comparison method: The model considers Expected growth in  The estimated fair value would increase (decrease) if
adequate market evidences of sales for agricuitural prices of agricultural  expected growth in prices of agricultural properties
preperties, more specifically those under sugarcane properties were higher {lower) future developmenis occur (do
cultivation in different localities of the island. Future developments in  not occur)

Bel Ombre.

Building improvements: Depreciated Replacement Cost  Expected price The estimated fair value would increase (decrease)
{DRC): The DRC is arrived at by using the current increase in if: expected price of contruction materials
censtruction costs of similar buildings based on our construction materials  increase/(decrease) interest rates
experience and knowledge of the construction sector and Expected growth in increase/(decrease)

adjusting for depreciation resulting from one or more of interest rates
the following factors: Physical deterioration, functional

obsolescence, external (or economic) obsclescence,

renovation works, level and quality of maintenance.

6. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Motor
Leasehold vehicles -
rights leased Total
THE GROUP Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
COST
At July 01, 2021 104,333 57,591 161,924
Additions - 8,826 8.826
Transfer to Property, Plant and Equipment - (39,759) (39,759)
Translation difference 1,559 187 1,746
At June 30, 2022 105,892 26,845 132,737
Additions - 8,311 8,311
Translation difference 1,996 194 2,180
At June 30, 2023 107,888 35,350 143,238
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At July 01, 2021 15,649 49,835 65,484
Charge for the year 1,750 2,931 4,681
Translation difference - - -
Transfer to Property, Plant and Equipment - (36,674) (36,674)
At June 30, 2022 17,399 16,092 33,491
Charge for the year 3,750 2,513 6,263
Translation difference 144 68 212
At June 30, 2023 21,293 18,673 39,966
CARRYING AMOUNT
At June 30, 2023 86,595 16,677 103,272

At June 30, 2022 88,493 10,753 99,246




AGRIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

48
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
6. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONT'D)
Motor
Leasehold vehicles
rights Leased Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

THE COMPANY

COST
At July 1, 2021 54,000 43,176 97,176
Additions - 6,802 6,802
Transfer to Properly, plant and equipment - (39.759) (39,759)
At June 30, 2022 54,000 10,219 64,219
Additions - 6,380 6,380
At June 30, 2023 54,000 16,599 70,599
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At July 1, 2021 8,100 39,381 47,481
Transfer to Property, plant and equipment - (36,674) (36,674)
Charge for the year 900 1,058 1,958
At June 30, 2022 9,000 3,765 12,765
Charge for the year 900 2,106 3,006
At June 30, 2023 9,900 5,871 15,771
CARRYING AMOUNT
At June 30, 2023 44,100 10,728 54,828
At June 30, 2022 45,000 6,454 51,454
Lease rights relates to rights acquired in respect of land for a period of 60 years.
The Group and the Company leases motor vehicles. The average lease term is 2 years.
Amounts recognised in profit and loss

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 6,263 4,681 3,006 1,958
Interest expense on lease liabilities 2,292 281 642 51
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6A. LEASE LIABILITIES
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1 10,443 4,796 6,339 755
Additions 6,319 8.404 6,319 6,396
Interest expense 1,952 371 642 142
Repaid during the year (6,621) (3,234) {2,281) (954}
Exchange difference 2,038 106 -
At June 30 14,131 10,443 11,019 6,339
Analysed as:
Non-current 9,529 7.242 8,538 5,355
Current 4,602 3,201 2,481 984
14,131 10,443 11,018 6,339
(a) Maturity analysis
Year 1 3,293 3,345 2,481 884
Year 2 3,277 2,782 2,481 938
Year 3 3,086 951 2,481 996
Year 4 2,870 1,010 2,449 1,058
Year 5 901 1,034 801 1,083
> 5 years 704 1,321 226 1,381
14,131 10,443 11,019 6,340
The Group and the Company do not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities.
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of default.
(b) Finance leases and concessions commitment
There is no restriction imposed on the Group and the Company by lease arrangements.
(c) Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)
The Company has leased motor vehicle. The lease contract provides for fixed payment over the duration of the lease
period.
(d) Residual value guarantees
At the end of the reporting period, no expected residual values was expected to be payable as part of the lease
liability.
(e) Interest Expense THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Interest expense 1,952 371 642 142

The total cash outflow for leases (including interest) in 2023 was Rs'000 6,621(2022: Rs'000 2,863) for the group and
Rs'000 2,281 (2022: Rs'000 954) for the company.
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{i)

(a)

(b)

DEFERRED EXPENDITURE

At July 1

Additions

Transferred to inventories
Released during the year
Translation difference

At June 30

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

. 11,998 . £
3,951 = 3,951 5
- (10,569) - -
- (5.821) = -
- 4,392 3 :
3,951 - 3,951 g

Deferred expendilure relates mainly to professional fees incurred on sales of land and villas. They are released 1o profit or

toss based on stage of completion of the construction of villas.

Costs incurred for development of infrastructure, initially classified under deferred expenditure in 2018, have been reciassified

to inventory to conform with changes in presentation.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Fair value model

At July 1

Additions
Development for future use

Transfer from property, plant and equipment - Freehold
land (Note §)

Transfer from property, plant and equipment - Assets in
progress(Note 5)

Transfer to Inventories (Note 15)
Reversal of retention monies
Change in fair value

Translation difference

At June 30

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
621,036 958,715 472,331 472,331
85,819 - 85,819 -
40,894 40,894 -
1,092,900 67,829 1,092,900 -
74,286 . 74,286 -
- (436,804) - -
- (2,472) - -
201,879 21,529 203,400 .
5,503 12,239 - -
2,122,317 621,036 1,969,630 472,331

The fair value of investment properties of the holding company as at June 30, 2023 was confirmed by external, independent
property valuers, Mr Marie F. Ricardo Ramiah-Isabel, having appropriate recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience in the location and category of the property being valued.

Significant unobservable input includes the price per arpent for the land which is Rs 4,495,000. Had the price per arpent been
5% higherflower, the impact of the fair value of investment properties and profit for the year would have been Rs 224,750

{2022: Rs 478,400) higher/lower.

Significant unobservable input includes the following:

Land {Price per arpent)
Building (Rate/sq.ft)
Capitalisation rate

MUR

400,000 - 20,000,000
1,800 - 20,000
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{b)

()

(©)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES {CONT'D)

The freeheld land for the beach club was revalued on June 30, 2023 by Ramiah - Isabel Consultancy Ltd, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, on an open market value basis using the ‘Direct Market Comparison’
approach which is based on recent transactions for similar properties. Where comparables are not available, then the
best-suited comparables are used and adjusted for date of transaction, geographical location, use, size, shape,
fontage, access, site contraints, planning restrictions etc. Significant unobservable input for the land of Place du
Moulin, includes the price per arpent which is Rs 20,000,000 (2022: Rs 12,000,000). The fair value movement was
credited to the statement of profit or loss. Had the price per arpent been 5% higher/lower, the impact of the fair value

of investment properties and profit for the year would have been Rs 1,000,000 (2022: Rs 600,000) higher/lower.

The following amounts have been recognised in profit or loss:

THE GROUP AND
THE COMPANY
2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000

Rental income 8,784 8,521
Direct operating expenses arising from investment
Properties that generate rental income (572) {572)

8,212 7.949

Valuation technique Significant
unobservable inputs

Land: Sales Comparison method: The
model considers adequate market
evidences of sales for agricultura
properties, more specifically those under
sugarcane cultivation in different localities
nf the island

Building improvements: Depreciated
Replacement Cost (DRC): The DRC is
arrived at by using the current construction
costs of similar buildings based on our
experience and knowledge of the
construction sector and adjusting for
deprectation resulting from one or more of
the following factors: Physical deterioration,
functional obsolescence, external {or

economic) obsolescence, renovation works,

level and quality of maintenance.

Significant unobservable
inputs

Expected growth in prices
of properties.

Inter-relationship between key unobservable
inputs and fair value measuremants

The estimated fair value would
increasef(decrease) if:

Future developments in the - expected growth in prices of properties were

Bel Ombre region.
not occur).

Expected price increase in
construction materials
Expected growth in interest
rates

higheri{lower) future developments occur/{do

The estimated fair value would
increasef{decrease) if:

- expected price of contruction materials
increasel(decrease)

- interest rates increasel(decrease)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at June 30, 2023 are as

follows:

The following amounts have been recognised as investment properties

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Level 3
Building 322,231 360,434 322,231 322,231
Land 1,800,086 260,602 1,647,400 150,100
Total 2,122,317 621,036 1,969,631 472,331
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8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D)

{d) Bank borrowings are secured by floating charges on the assets of the Group including investment property (note
23).

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Trading

THE GROUP rights Software Total

Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
COST
At July 01, 2021 8,624 6,742 15,366
Discontinued cperations - (4,164) {4,164)
Translation difference - 25 25
At July 1, 2022 8,624 2,603 11,227
Additions - 392 392
Write-off {8,624} (2,603) {11,227)
At June 30, 2023 - 392 392
AMORTISATION
At July 01, 2021 8,624 2,163 10,787
Charge for the year - 307 307
At June 30, 2022 8,624 2,470 11,094
Charge for the year - - -
Write off {8,624) {2,470) {11,094)
At June 30, 2023 - - -
CARRYING AMOUNT
At June 30, 2023 - 392 392

At June 30, 2022 - 133 133
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9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D)

Trading
THE COMPANY rights Software Total

Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
COST
At July 1, 2021 8,624 2,164 10,788
Additions - 133 133
At July 1, 2022 8,624 2,297 10,921
Additions - 392 392
Write-off (8,624) (2,297) {10,921)
At June 30, 2023 - 392 392
AMORTISATION
At July 1, 2021 8,624 1,857 14,481
Charge for the year - 307 307
At June 30, 2022 8,624 2,164 10,788
Charge for the year = o -
Write off (8,624) (2,164) {10,788}
At June 30, 2023 . - -
CARRYING AMOUNT
At June 30, 2023 - 392 392
At June 30, 2022 - 133 133
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

10.

{b)
(i)

11.

{a)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES {CONT'D)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests (cont'd)

Summarised cash flow information:
Net increase
in

Operating Investing Financing cash and cash
activities activities activities equivalents
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
2023
Les Villas de Bel Ombre Ltée 87,365 {955) {4,049) 82,361
2022
Les Villas de Bel Ombre Ltée 160,932 (1,051) (9,590) 150,291

The summarised financial information above is the amount before intra-group eliminations.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED COMPANY

{i) Results of associate included in the consolidated financial statements

THE GROUP
2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
Unquoted
At July 1 18,964 17,155
Share of profit 3,917 2,409
Dividends (471) (600)
At June 30 22,410 18,964
(i} In separate financial statements of the investor
THE COMPANY
2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
Fair value
At July 1 14,400 18,449
Fair value movement 1,900 (4,049)
At June 30 16,300 14,400

The fair value of the investment was based on a combination of net assets and capitalised earmings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

12.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(i)  Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income:

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
DEM quoted Unquoted Totai
Rs'000 Rs"000 Rs'000
2023
Non-current
At July 1, 6 355,972 355,978
Changes in fair value recognised in OCI (g)) 1,074 1,073
At June 30, 5 357,046 357,051
2022
Non-current
At July 1, 5 291,009 291,104
Reclassification from financial assets at amortised costs - 1,692 1,692
Changes in fair value recognised in QOCI 1 63,181 63,182
At June 30, 6 355,972 355,978

(i) The equily securities are financial assets held in companies incorporated in Mauritius and are denominated in
Mauritian Rupees.

(i} Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income include the Group's strategic equity
investments not held for trading. The Group has made an irrevaocable election to classify the equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive income rather than through profit or loss because this is considered to be
more appropriate for these strategic investments.

(iv) The fair value of quoted securilies is based on published market prices. The fair value of the unquoled securities
are based on the discounted cash flow technique and net assels values of the investee companies.

(v) Fair value of other comprehensive income financial assets include the following:

2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000

DEM guoted- Level 1

- United Investment Lid 5 6
Unguoted- Level 3

- Rogers Hospitality Operations Limited 349,900 354,000
- Ecocentre Lid 30 30
- Green Mountain Ltd 7,116 1,692
- Librairies Seneque Lenoir - 250

357,051 355,978
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

13. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

2023 2022
THE GROUP THE COMPANY THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

Loan to related parties 108,808 8,593 101,543 8,563
Non-current 76,918 8,593 83,333 8,563
Current 31,890 - 18,210 -

108,808 8,593 101,543 8,563
This consists of the following:

() Loan advanced to Green Mountain Limited - Rs'000 8,593 (2022: Rs'000 8,563)

Interest on loan given to Green Mountain Limited is charged at USD 3 month LIBOR +2% p.a.

(i} Loan to Jacotet Bay Ltd - Rs'000 89,538 (2022: Rs'000 66,225)
Based on the shareholders loan agreement, the loan to related company is repayable on realisation of the villa
construction projects. The rate of interest on the loan is 3.5% p.a.

(iii) Loan to FMVV Immobilier Ltée - Rs'000 10,500 (2022: Rs'000 Nil)
Short term loan to FMVV Immobilier Ltee and interest receivable.

{iv) The Company's risk exposure that is directly affected by the LIBOR reform predominantly comprises its variable rate
borrowings that are linked to the LIBOR. Three-month, six-month, and twelve-month USD LIBOR will cease
publication after June 30, 2023, and it is expected to be replaced by the appropriate alternative reference rate. The
Company has variable rate USD loan receivables which references to LIBOR and matures based on a maturity date.
The Company’'s communications with the counterparties are ongoing, but specific changes required by IBOR reform
have not yet been agreed. The expected transition from LIBOR to the appropriate alternative reference rate is not
expected to have an effect on the amounts reported for the current and prior financial years. As at reporting date, the
company expects the affected loan receivables to transition to alternative interest rate benchmarks by the end of
2022.

Impairment and risk exposure
The financial assels at amortised cost are denominated in the following currencies:
2023 2022
THE GROUP THE COMPANY THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

US Dollar 108,808 8,593 101,543 8,563
There is no exposure to price risk as these loan advanced will be held to maturity.
These assets are carried at amortised cost and are required to be tested for impairment. The credit assessment is
based on future cash flow forecasts and available support from the intermediate parent company. The probability of
default is considered insignificant and therefore directors have not recognised the loss allowance as the amount is
immaterial.

14. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES THE GROUP

2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1 39,049 40,775
Share of loss (2,534) (1,726)

At June 30 36,515 39,049
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14.

(a)

{b)

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT'D)

Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Principal Country of incorporation
Name of joint venture activity and place of business Proportion of voting rights
2023 2022
Jacotet Bay Limited Real estate Mauritius 50% 50%
FMVV Immobilier Ltée Real estate Mauritius 50% 50%

Both Jacotet Bay Limited and FMVV Immobilier Ltée are private companies and there are no quoted market prices

available for their shares.

Summarised financial information

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material joint ventures are set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the joint ventures’ financial statements

prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

Summarised statement of financial position

FMVV Immobilier Ltée Jacotet Bay Limited
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Current assets 83,873 85,263 226,537 327,902
Non-current assels 22,930 11,363 - -
Current liabilities 12,471 1,465 98,949 100,397
Non-current liabilities 31,317 17,067 234,516 310,639
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following:
FMVV Immohilier Ltée Jacotet Bay Limited
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Cash and cash equivalents {1,246) 70,164 {53,959) 22,561
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade
and other payables and provisions}) - - - 72,450
Non-current financial liabilities {(excluding trade
and other payables and provisions) 21,317 17,067 234,516 310,639
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14. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES {CONT'D)
(b} Summarised financial information {cont'd}
Summarised statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
FMVV Immobilier Liée Jacotet Bay Limited
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
{Loss)/Profit from continuing operations (1,637) (3,452} {20,756} 1,508
{Loss)Profit for the year {1,637) (3.452) (20,756) 1.508
Other comprehensive income for the year 5 n x 2
Total comprehensive income for the year {1,637) (3.452) (20,756) 1,508
The above loss for the year include the following:
Depreciation and amortisation - - - (48)
Interest expense (363) {192) {15,710} (7,155)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in the joint

ventures recognised in the financial statements:

FMVV
immobilier Jacotet Bay
2023 Ltée Limited Total
Rs'000 Rs"000 Rs'000
At July 1 39,049 - 39,049
Loss for the year (2,534) - {2,534)
Closing net assets 36,515 - 36,515
Interest in joint venture (50%) limited to nil
Additions - - -
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in the joint venture 36,515 A 36,515
2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
The unrecognised share of loss of a joint venture for the year 34,980 34,980
Cumulative share of loss of a joint venture 8,161 8,161
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14.

15.

16.

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES {(CONT'D)

Recenciliation of summarised financial information

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in the joimt
ventures recognised in the financial statements:

FMVV
Immobilier Jacotet Bay

2022 Ltée Limited Total

Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1 40,775 - 40,775
Loss for the year (1,726) - {1,726)
Closing net assets 39,049 - 39,049
Interest in joint venture {(50%) limited to nil
Additions 3 & =
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in the joint venture 39,049 - 39,049

Classification of Jacotet Bay Limited and FMVV Immobilier Ltée as a joint venture

Jacotet Bay Limited and FMVV Immobilier Ltée are limited liability companies whose legal form confers separation
between the parties to the joint arrangements and the Group itself. There is no contractual agreement that indicates
that the parties to the joint arrangements have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint
arrangements. Accordingly, they have been classified as joint ventures.

At June 30, 2023, the joint ventures had contingent liabilities in respect of bank guarantees arising in the ordinary
course of business from which it is anticipated that no material liabilities would arise.

INVENTORIES
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

Land 483,421 170,535 - S
Transfer from investment property (note 8) - 436,804
Transfer from deferred expenditure (note 7) - 10,569 - -
Spare parts, fertilisers and fuel (at cost) 5,814 5,735 5814 5,735

489,235 623,643 5,814 5,735

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost of sales amounted to Rs'000 138,333 (2022:
Rs'000 175,435).

Bank borrowings are secured by floating charges on the assets of the group including inventories.

CONSUMABLE BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

THE GROUP AND
THE COMPANY
2023 2022
Rs"'000 Rs'000
At July 1, 61,160 69,057
Movement in fair value 532 (7,897)

At June 30, 61,692 61,160
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16.

{a)

{b)

(c)

(d)

(i)

(ii)

CONSUMABLE BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (CONT'D)

Consumable biological assets are stated at their fair values. These include standing canes, deer farming, palm
plants, nursery plant and grass.

The fair value measurements for standing canes have been categorised as Level 3 fair values as there are
significant adjustments made in the fair values adjustments.

The most significant unobservable inputs for the valuation are as follows:

2023 2021
Description Inpuit Input
Extraction rate 9.77% 10.25%
Price of sugar per ton Rs. 25,554 Rs.22,366
Discount rate 6.0% 6.0%

The fair value measurements for standing crops, deers, palm trees, plants and grass have been categorised as Level
3 fair values based on the inputs to the valuation techniques used and based on observable market sales data,
adjusted for market conditions, as described below.

At June 30, 2023, standing canes are no more operational (2022 - 261 hectares).
During the year, the Company harvested approximately 635 tonnes of canes (2022 : 12,295 tonnes).

The physical quantities of other consumable biological assets are as follows:

2023 2022
Deer 3,207 3,112
Palm trees 108,435 101,754
Nursery plants 75,401 86,535
Open ground nursery 132 1,311
Grass (m2) 64,214 59,213

Risk management strategy related to agricultural activities

The Group is exposed 1o the following risks associated with its agricultural activities namely standing crop, deer
farming and palm frees.

Demand and supply risk

The Group is exposed to risks arising from fluctuations in the price and sales volume of standing crop, deer farming
and palm trees. When possible, the Group manages this risk by aligning its harvest volume to market supply and
demand. Management performs regular industry trend analysis for projected harvest volumes and pricing.

Climate and other risk

The Group's standing crop and palm trees plantations and deer farming are exposed to the risk of damage from
climatic changes, diseases, forest fires and other natural forces. The Group has extensive processes in place aimed
at monitoring and mitigating those risks, including regular forest health inspections and industry pest and disease
surveys. The Group atso insured against natural disasters such as forest fires, floods and cyclones.
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16.

(e}

17.

{®

CONSUMABLE BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (CONT'D)

Valuation technigues and significant unobservable inputs

The fellowing table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the

significant unobservable inputs used.

Type Valuation technique

Standing

Palms Discounted cash flows: The
valuation model considers
the present value of the
net cash flows expected
to be generated by Palm over the

next 5 years.

MNursery Plants  Net Realisable Value

Grass Net Realisable Value

Deer Net Realisable Value

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment

Trade receivables - net

Impairment of trade receivables

Discounted cash flows: The
cane valuation model considers the
present value of the net cash
flows expected to be generated
by sugarcane plantation.

Significant unobservable inputs

Estimated future price of Sugar
per tonne- Rs 25,554 (2022:Rs
22,366).

Extraction rate per tonne-10.25%
{2022: 10.25%).

Estimated average price of palms -

Rs 435 per palm tree (2022: Rs
a7

Future selling price of different
type of plants.

Estimated future contribution of
grass- Rs 57 (2022: Rs 57).

Average weight of deer- 45 kg
and 35 kg for local breed {(2022:
45 kg and 35 kg for local breed).
Average price of deer per Kg- Rs
180 (2022: Rs 180).

Inter-relationship between key
unobservable inputs and fair
value measurement

The estimated fair value would
increasef(decrease) if: Expected
income from Sugar were
higher/(lower) Costs were
lower/(higher).

The estimated fair value would
increase (decrease) if; Expected
selling price were higher/(lower)
Costs were lower/{higher).

The estimated fair value would
increase (decrease) if.Expected
selling price were higher/{lower)
Costs were lower/(higher).

The estimated fair value would
increase (decrease) if: Expected
selling price were higher/{lower)
Costs were lower/(higher).

The estimated fair value would
increase (decrease) if: Expected
weight per deer were higher/{lower)
Selling price higher/{lower).

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
58,423 86,575 21,236 18,135
(36,795) (48,802) (3.972) {9,400)
21,628 37,773 17,264 8,735

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for ail trade receivables.

To measure the expected credil losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk

characteristics and the days past due.
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT'D}

(i) Impairment of frade receivablas (cont'd)

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 3 years before June 30, 2022 or
July 1, 2021 respectively and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced previously. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macro-economic factors affecting the ability of
the customer to seffle the receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at June 30, 2023 and July 1, 2022 was determined as follows for trade

receivables:
THE GROUP
More than More than More than
30 days 60 days 90 days
Current past due past due past due Total
At June 30, 2023 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Expected loss rate 6% 7% 1% 92% 63%
Gross carrying amount -
trade receivable 16,123 2,807 852 38,642 58,423
Loss allowance 967 192 10 35,626 36,795
More than More than More than
30 days 60 days 90 days
Current past due past due past due Total
At July 1, 2022 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Expected loss rate 7% 48% 61% 72% 56%
Gross carrying amount -
trade receivable 21,032 116 173 65,255 86,575
Loss allowance 1,375 55 105 47,266 48,802
THE COMPANY
More than More than Mere than
30 days 60 days 90 days
Current past due past due past due Tolal
At June 30, 2023 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs."000 Rs.'000 Rs."000
Expected loss rate 7% 7% 1% 52% 19%
Gross carrying amount -
trade receivable 11,838 2,807 852 5,740 21,236
Loss allowance 806 192 10 2,964 3,972
More than More than More than
30 days 60 days 80 days
Current past due past due past due Total
At July 1, 2022 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs."000 Rs."000 Rs."000
Expected loss rate 7% 48% 50% 87% 52%
Gross carrying amount -
trade receivable 7.891 116 147 9,980 18,135

Loss aliowance 583 55 74 8,687 9,400
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT'D)
{iy Impairment of trade receivables {cont'd)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at June 30, 2023 reconcile to the opening loss allowances as

follows:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022

Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1 48,802 44,684 9,400 7,153
Loss allowance recognised in profit or loss
during the year - 4118 - 2,247
Amount recovered in profit or loss {12,007) - {5,428) -
At June 30 36,795 48,802 3,972 9,400

(i) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

(i} The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company's trade receivables approximate their fair values and are
denominated by the following currencies:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Mauritian rupee 19,742 8,735 17,264 8,735
usD 1,886 29,038 - -
21,628 37,773 17,264 8,735
18. AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM GROUP COMPANIES
THE GROUP
2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
Associate - 5,169
Fellow subsidiaries 17,547 991
Common management 208 1,373
Holding company 1,235 -
18,990 7.533
THE COMPANY
2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
Associate - 5,169
Ultimate holding company 1,235 471
Fellow subsidiaries 17,547 991
Subsidiaries 366 881
Entity under common management 207 4,779

19,355 12,291
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22

AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM GROUP COMPANIES (CONT'D)

The Group applies IFRS 9 to measure expected credit losses. In assessing the credit risk of related companies, the Group analyses the
working capital, historical trend of repayment and cash flows of the parties liable for repayment and also lakes into consideration the
support from ils intermediate parent company of the Group. The intermediate holding company has sufficient liquid assets (without
restriction} after considering the prionty payments to repay the amount of behalf of related entities gither in the form of capital contribution

or loan to the related entities. The probability of default is insignificant.

PREPAYMENTS

Prepayments

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other receivables

SHARE CAPITAL

At July 1, 2022 and June 30, 2023

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
324 6,246 280 6,205
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
25,276 21.156 16,675 13,832
Number of Ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
166,500 33,300 39,960 73,260

The total authorisad number of erdinary shares is 166,500 (2022: 166,500) with a par value of Rs.200. All issued shares are fully paid.

RESERVES
THE GROUP
Translation
of foreign
Revaluation Fair value Actuarial currency
reserves reserves losses Operation Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
2023
ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or foss
Remeasurement of defined benefits obligations - - 18,735 - 18,738
Deferred 1ax relating to retirement benefit obligations - - . - -
Revaluation loss on land and buldings 136,605 - - - 136,605
Change in use and lapse conversion {170,509) - - - (170,509)
Changes in fair value of equity instruments at fair value 1,073
through other comprehensive income
- 1,073 - -
items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss - . - L -
Currency translation differences - . . 6,749 6,749
{33,904) 1,073 18,735 6,749 {7,347)
2022
items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefits cbligations - - {5,617) - (5.617)
Deferred {ax relating to retirement benefit obligations - - a8y - 887
Share of other comprehensive -
income of associates - 5 A & s
Changes in fair value of equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income 63,181 5 s 63,181
items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss
Currency translation differences - - - 13,114 13,114
- 63,181 (4,730) 13,114 71,565
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22.

RESERVES (CONT'D)

Revaluation surplus
The revaluation surpius arises on revaluation of land and building.

Fair value reserve

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in fair value of financial assets that has been recognised in
other comprehensive income until the investments are derecognised or impaired.

Translation of foreign currency translation operations

The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of a subsidiary denominated in USD.

Actuarial losses

The actuarial losses reserve represents the cumulative measurement of defined benefit obligation recognised.

THE COMPANY
Revaluation Fair value Actuarial
surplus reserves losses Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

023
ltems that wiil not be reclassified to profit or
loss
Remeasurement of defined benefits cbligations L . 18,143 18,143
Revaluation loss on land and buildings 136,605 . . 136,605
Change in use and lapse conversion (170,509) - - (170,509)
Deferred tax relating retirement benefit obligations . - . -
Changes in fair value of equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income . 13.373 | 13.373

{33,904} 13,373 18,143 {2,388)

2022
items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
Remeasurement of defined benefits obligations ) i (5.220) (5.220)
Deferred tax relating retirement benefit obligations _ 1 887 887
Changes in fair value of equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income B 135.475 _ 135.475

- 135,475 (4,333) 131,142
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23. BORROWINGS THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs™000 Rs'000
Non-current
Bank loans (note 23(a)) 362,945 205,864 324,986 165,393
Other loans (note 23(b)) 180,071 207,705 180,090 130,000
543,016 413,569 505,076 295,393
Current
Bank loans (note 23(a)) 95,580 16,347 11,616 12,669
Other loans {note 23(b)} 144,000 50,000 144,000 50,000
239,580 66,347 155,616 62,669
Total borrowings 782,596 479,916 660,692 358,062

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The bank borrowings are secured by fixed and floating charges on the assets of the Group. The rates of interest on
loans vary between 6.75% - 8.50% (2022: 4.10% - 4.25%).

Other loans consists of loan from ultimate holding company amounting to Rs'000 130,000 (2022: Rs'000 130,000)
and are unsecured and interest bearing at 4.25%.

The maturity of non-current borrowings is as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

- After one year and before two years 67,846 112,900 29,887 13,638
- After two years and before three years 33,591 36,024 33,610 14,366
- After three years and hefore five years 204,403 174,436 204,403 159,302
- After five years 237,177 109,220 237,177 109,220

543,016 432,580 505,076 296,426

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates are as follows:

6 months

or less
The Group Rs'000
At June 30, 2023
Total borrowings 782,596
Al June 30, 2022
Total borrowings 479,816
The Company
At June 30, 2023
Total borrowings 660,692
At June 30, 2022
Total borrowings 358,062

The carrying amounts of non-current borrowings are not materially different from the fair values.

The rates of interest and currency denomination relating to Group's borrowings are disclosed in Note 3.1(k).
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23 A. BANK OVERDRAFTS
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'0C0 Rs'000
Bank overdrafts (note (a)} 134,681 239,795 34,544 64,822

(a)

24,

The bank overdrafts are secured by fixed and floating charges on the assets of the Group. The rates of interest on
loans vary between 4.5% 1o 6.75% (2022: 4.10% - 4.25%).

The exposure of the Company's borrowings to interest-rate changes and the contractual repricing dates are as

follows:

Total bank overdrafts

usbD
Mauritian Rupees

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Non-current liabilities

Amounts recognised on the statement

of financial position:

Defined pension benefit (note 24{a)(ii}}
Other post retirement benefits 24({note (b)(i})

Amounts charged to profit or loss:
Defined pension benefit {note 24({a)(v))
Other post retirement benefits (note 24{b}(iv))

6 months or less

Amounts (credited)/charged to other comprehensive income:

Defined pension benefit (note 24(a)(vi))
Other post retirement benefits (note 24(b)(v))

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
134,681 239,795 34,544 64,822
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
98,557 174,973 - .
36,124 64,822 34,544 64,822
134,681 239,795 34,544 64,822
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
65,183 81,163 65,183 81,163
9,377 34,193 7,155 29,433
74,560 115,356 72,338 110,596
4,817 3.529 4,817 3,529
(18,612) 3,633 (18,902} 3,359
(13,795) 7,162 (14,085) 6,888
(16,286) 9,789 (16,286) 9,789
(2,449) (4,172) (1,857) (4,569)
(18,735) 5,617 (18,143) 5,220
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24,

(a)
0]

(ii)

(iii)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)

Defined pension benefit

The Company contributes to the Sugar Industry Pension Fund (SIPF) which is multi-employer defined benefit
pension for employees (and their dependents) of the sugar industry. The teve! of benefits provided depend on the
cumulative contributions, years of service and salary up to retirement.

The assets of the plan are independently administered by Swan Life Ltd.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligations were
carried out at June 30, 2023 by Swan Actuarial Services Ltd (2022: Swan Actuarial Services Ltd). The present vaiue
of the defined benefit obligations, and the related current service cost and past service cost were measured using
the Project Unit Credit Method.

The amounts recognised on the statement of financial position are as follows:
THE GROUP AND

THE COMPANY
2023 2022
Rs"000 Rs'000
Present value of funded obligations 150,239 174,919
Fair value of plan assets {85,056) (93,756}
Defined benefit obligation in excess of plan assets 65,183 81,163

The reconciliation of the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit liability/(asset) is as
follows:

THE GROUP AND

THE COMPANY
2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1, 81,163 78,218
Charged to profit or loss 4,817 3,629
Charged to other comprehensive income (16,286) 9,789
Contributions paid (4,511) (10,373)
At June 30, 65,183 81,163

The movement in the defined benefil abligations over the year is as follows:
THE GROUP AND
THE COMPANY

2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
At Jduly 1, 174,919 163,377
Current service cost 1,573 389
Employee contributions 204 1,296
Interest cost 6,949 6,613
Other benefits paid {10,980) {14,977)
Liability loss/{gain) due to change in financial assumption (22,426) 18,221

At June 30, 150,239 174,919
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24, RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)
{a) Defined pension benefit (cont'd)
(iv} The movement in the fair value of plan assets of the year is as follows:
THE GROUP AND
THE COMPANY
2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1, 93,756 85,159
Interest income 3,705 3,540
Employer contributions 4,511 10,373
Employee contributions 204 1,296
Benefits paid {10,980) (14,977)
Actuarial {losses)/gains {(6,140) -
Return on plan assets excluding interest income - 8,432
Cost of insuring risk benefils - {67)
At June 30, 85,056 93,756
(v) The amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows:
THE GROUP AND
THE COMPANY
2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
Current service cost 1,573 389
Net interest on net defined benefit liability 3,244 3,073
Cost of insuring risk benefits - 67
Total included in employee benefit expense 4,817 3,528
The above amount has been included in expenses.
(vi} The amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:
THE GROUP AND
THE COMPANY
2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
Return on plan assets below interest income - (8,432)
Gain on pension scheme assets 6,140
Liability experience (gains)/losses {1,922) 5,649
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme {20,504) 12,572
{16,286) 9,789
{vii) The assets in the plan were:
THE GRCUP AND
THE COMPANY
2023 2022
% %
Local Equities 21% 21%
Foreign Equities 25% 25%
Fixed Interest & Cash 26% 26%
Properties 15% 15%
Qualifying Insurance Policy 13% 13%

Total $00% 100%
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24. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)
(@) Defined pension benefit (cont'd)
(vii) The assets in the plan were (cont'd):
2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
Aclual return on plan assets (2,196)

Where the plan is funded, the overall expecied rate of return on plan assets is determined by reference to market
yields on bonds and expected yield differences on other types of assels held or to pay benefits out of cashflow as
and when due.

{viii) AGRIA Limited is expected to contribute around Rs 5.1m to the pension schemes and to benefits paid from cashflow

{ix)
(x)
(b)

(ii)

for the year ending 30 June 2024.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 7 years.

The pension plan does not include the Company's ordinary shares.

Other post retirement benefits

The Company is subject to Sugar Indusiry remuneration orders for labourers and artisans. They provide for the
payment of a lump sum on retirement or earlier death. The benefits are unfunded and depend mainly on the monthly
wage at relirement. For arlisans/labourers who are also members of SIPF, the gratuily payable is reduced by the
current gratuity payable under SIPF. Certain staff employees are eligible for a retirement gratuity under the Workers'
Rights Act 2019.

The amounts recognised on the statement of financial position are as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Present value of unfunded obligations 9,377 34,193 7,155 29,433

The movement in the liability recognised on the statement of financial position is as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022

Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
AtJuly 1, 34,193 37.677 29,433 33,756
Charged to profit or loss {18,612) 3,633 {18,902) 3,359
Charged to other comprehensive income {1,857) (4,172} (1,857) (4.569)
Foreign exchange difference {769} 168 - S
Contributions paid {3,578) {3,113) (1,519) (3,113)

At June 30, 9,377 34,193 7,155 29,433
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24. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)
(b} Other post retirement benefits (cont'd)
(iii) Reconciliation of the present value of obligations:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Present value of obligations at start of period 34,193 37,677 29,433 33,756
Current service cost 1,721 2,262 1,721 2,159
Interest cost 1,199 1,371 1,199 1,200
Effect of curtailments/settlements (21,581) - (21,581} -
Past service cost and settlement gain - (1,026) - (1,026)
Other benefits paid {2,074) (2.087) {15) (2,087)
Foreign exchange difference 114 169 - -
Liability (gain)loss - 1.249 - 853
Actuarial (gains)/losses {2,403) {1.811) -
Liability loss due to change in financial
assumptions 754 (5,422) 754 (5.422)
Present value of obligations at end of period 11,922 34,193 9,700 29,433
(iv) The amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Current service cost 1,670 2,262 1,561 2,159
Past service cost and settliement gain 68 - 68 -
Effect of curtailments/settiements {21,581) - (21,581) -
Net interest on net defined benefit liability 1,231 1,371 1,050 1,200
{18,612) 3,633 {18,902) 3,359
(v) The amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs‘000 Rs'000 Rs"000 Rs'000
Losses on pension scheme assets 37 - 37 -
Actuarial gain arising from changes in
demographic assumplions (592) - -
Liability experience gain 1,107 853 1,107 853
Liability loss due to change in financial
assumptions {3,001) (5.025) {3,001) (5.422)
{2,449) (4,172) {1,857) (4,569)

(vi) The expected employer contributions for the year ending June 30, 2024 is Rs'M 3.7for the Group and the Company.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is estimated to be 5 years.
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24.  RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)
(c) The principal actuarial assumptions used for accounting purposes were as follows:
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
Other post retirement
Defined benefit benefits
2023 2022 2023 2022
% % % %
Discount rate 5.29 410 5.37 3.60
Future salary increases 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Pension increases = -
Average retirement age (NRA) 60 years 60 years
{d)  sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligations at end of reporting date:
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
Other post retirement
Defined benefit benefits
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Increase due to 1% decrease in discount rate 17,167 21,450 516 1,360
(Decrease) due to 1% increase in discount rate {14,280) (17,763) (455) {1,223)
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
Other post retirement
Defined benefit benefits
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'D00 Rs'000 Rs'000
Increase due to 1% increase in future long term
salary assumplion 2,451 2,610 523 1,353
Decrease due to 1% decrease in future long term
Sl AT ) (2,288) 2,417 (469) 1,240

The above sensitivity analysis has been carried out by recalculating the present value of obligation at end of period
after increasing or decreasing the discount rate while leaving all other assumptions unchanged. Any similar variation in
the other assumptions would have shown smaller variations in the defined benefit obligations.

The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely
that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
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24. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)

{e) The Company is exposed to various risks in respect of the defined benefil pension plan that it has set up for its
employees, These risks include the following:

Investment risk (where the plan is funded): The plan liability is calculated using a discount rate delermined by reference
to government bond yields; if the retum on plan assets is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit and if it is higher, it will
create a plan surplus.

Interest risk: A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this may be partially offset by
an increase in the return on the plan's debt investments and a decrease in inflationary pressures on salary and pension
increases.

Longevity risk (where the plan is funded and an annuity is paid over life expectancy): The plan liability is calculated by
reference to the best estimate of the montality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in
the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability,

Salary risk: The plan liability is calculated by reference to the future projected salaries of plan participants. As such, an
increase in the salary of the plan participants above the assumed rate will increase the plan liability whereas an increase
below the assumed rate will decrease the liability.

25 DEFERRED INCOME

THE GROUP &
THE COMPANY
2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
At duly 1, - 3,780
Addition 3,213 -
Release to profit or loss - {3,780)
At June 30, 3,213 -
Analysed as:
Non-current - -
Current 3,213
3,213 -

Deferred income relates to advance received from subsidiary in respect of cost incurred for renovation of Le Chateau.
The deferred income is amortised over a period of 5 years, representing the remaining lease period.

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'C00

Trade payables 72,110 68,078 65,507 29,118
Other payables 225,147 198,008 72,251 31,269
Advance deposits from customers 35,207 84,581 9,665 10,716
VAT payable 320 291 - -

332,784 350,958 147,423 71,103

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate their fair value.
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27. AMOUNTS PAYABLE TO GROUP COMPANIES
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Intermediate holding company - 38,464 - 21,779
Subsidiaries - - - 1,411
Fellow subsidiaries {note 27) 20,923 37,922 20,923 38,415
20,923 76,386 20,923 61,605
The carrying amounts of amount payable to group companies approximate their fair value.
28. TAXATION
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Profit or loss Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Deferred tax (credit)/charge (note 29) - 887 - 887
The tax on the Group's and Company's profit/(loss) before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the basic tax rate as follows:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Profit/{ioss} before tax 70,353 {14,160) 45,889 {70,897)
Tax calculated at a rate of 15% (2022: 15%) 11,568 (2,407) 7,801 (12,053)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 11,878 4,969 8,981 5,620
Income not subject to tax (49,427) {12,831} (39,573) (515)
Income exempt from taxation {1,871) - (1.871) -
Tax losses not yet utilised 27,851 11,156 24,662 7,835
- 887 - 887
Deferred tax is calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method at 17% (2022: 17%).
(a) Thereis a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against cumrent tax liabilities and deferred income tax

assets and liabilities when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following amounts are
shown in the statement of financial position:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs"000 Rs'000

Deferred tax assels
Tax losses {96,725) {84,708) (38,560) {43,366)
Bad debts and provisions (1,015) - {1,015} -
Retirement benefit abligations (500} (18,801) 335 (18,801)

(98,240) (103,509) (39,240) (62.167)
Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated tax depreciation {11,894) 86,539 {3,180) 42,367
Revaluation of buildings 34,578 16,970 34,578 19,800

Deferred Tax Asset not recognised 75,556 - 7,842 -
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29. DEFERRED TAX ASSET/(LIABILITY)
{b} Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
THE GROUP
Charged to
Credited to other At
At July 1, profit or comprehensive  Translation June 30,
2022 loss income difference 2023
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
2023
Tax losses (84,708) (96,725) - - (181,433)
Bad debts and provisions - - {1,015) - (1,015)
Retirement benefit obligations (18,801) 3,420 {2,919) - (18,300}
Investment properties 7,482 - - - 7,482
Accelerated tax depreciation 86,539 (11,894) - - 74,645
Revaluation of building 9,488 - - - 9,488
Deferred tax not recognised = 105,199 3,934 - 109,133
Net deferred tax liability/{asset) - - - - -
THE GROUP
Charged to
At Credited to other At
July 1, profit or comprehensive Translation June 30,
2021 loss income difference 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs"'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
2022
Tax losses (77,324) - (7,384) - {84,708)
Retirement benefit obligations {19,036) (887} 1,122 - {18,801)
Investment properties 7,482 - - - 7,482
Accelerated tax depreciation 79,390 - 7.1489 - 86,539
Revaluation of building 9,488 - - - 9,488
96,360 - 7,149 - 103,509
Net deferred tax liability/(asset) - {887} 887 - -
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29. DEFERRED TAX ASSET/(LIABILITIES) (CONT'D)
THE COMPANY
Credited to
other Debited to At
At July 1, comprehensive profit or June 30,
2022 income loss 2023
Rs'000 Rs’'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
2023
Tax losses (43,366) - (38,560) (81,926)
Retirement benefit obligations (18,801) (3,084) 3,420 (18,465)
Accelerated tax depreciation 42,367 - (3,180) 39,187
Revaluation of investment properties 7,482 - - 7,482
Bad debts and other provisions - - (1,015) (1,015}
Revaluation of building 12,318 - - 12,318
Deferred tax not recognised - 3,084 39,335 42,419
Net deferred tax liability - - - -
THE COMPANY
Charged to
At other Credited to At
July 1, comprehensive profit or June 30,
2021 income loss 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
2022
Tax losses (35,982) - (7,384) {43,366)
Retirement benefit abligations (19,038) (887) 1,122 {18,801}
Accelerated lax depreciation 35218 L 7,149 42 367
Revaluation of investment properties 7482 - - 7,482
Revaluation of building 12,318 3 - 12,318
Net deferred tax liability - (887) 887 -
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Tax losses carried forward
The estimated tax losses at the end of the year 527,287 687,900 337,191 356,270
30. SUGAR, MOLASSES AND OTHER PROCEEDS
THE GROUP AND
THE COMPANY
2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
Sugar 14,979 17,678
Molasses 216 1,306
Other sugar revenue 1,399 3,480
16,594 22,464
Timing of revenue recognition:
At a point in time 16,594 22 464
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31. OTHER REVENUE
The following is an analysis of the Group and the Company's revenue for the year:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs‘000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Proceeds from sales of real estates 461,168 324,046 - -
Other revenue
Revenue from sales of goods 88,678 55,016 99,707 55,016
Revenue from rendering of services 16,012 49,671 16,012 49 671
Rental and other income 18,325 14,440 10,819 11,916
123,015 119,127 126,538 116,603
Revenue from contracts with customers (note 31(a)) 569,364 443173 126,538 116,603
31(a). DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Goods and agricultural products 12,617 23,603 56,900 23,603
Landscaping services 38,763 41,801 42,747 41,801
Livestock and related activities 44,344 38,120 2,686 38,120
Management fees 2,626 1,163 13,386 1,163
Real estates 471,014 324,046 10,819 11,916
569,364 428,733 126,538 116,603
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time 527,975 366,353 70,405 73,639
Over time 41,389 62,380 56,133 42,964
569,364 428,733 126,538 116,603
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32(a). OPERATING, ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Other supplies and services 178,835 156,380 127,933 108,998
Employee benefit expense (see note 33(b) 162,716 100,134 135,356 71,376
Depreciation of
- Property, plant and equipment {Note 5) 31,383 19,841 17,362 18,381
- Rights of use assets {(Note 6) 6,263 4 681 3,006 1,958
Amortisation of intangible assets - 307 - 307
37,646 24,829 20,368 20,646
379,197 281,343 283,657 201,020
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Wages and salaries 87,360 88,514 62,877 61,441
Compensation to Voluntary Retirement Scheme 84,972 - 84,972 -
Social security costs and pension costs 4,179 4,458 1,692 2,947
Release of retirement benefit obligations
- Defined benefit plan 4,817 3,529 4817 3,629
- Other post retirement benefits (18,612) 3,633 {18,902} 3,359
162,716 100,134 135,356 71,376
DIRECT COSTS - SALES OF REAL ESTATES
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Deferred expenditure and other land related costs 99,655 71,968 -
Land cost and cost of construction 138,306 27,573 - -
Repairs of villas, defects and late delivery 5,335 25,076 - -
Professional fees 7,208 7,101 - -
2,721 2,226 - -
Land transfer tax 20,211 16,582 -
Cost of villas sold 33,245 35,446 - -
Sales commission 15,037 6,329 -
Golf membership and golf carts 3,681 6,049 - -
- 2,735 -
Option prermiurm - 7,756 - -
Social contribution 2,600 2,844 - -
Other expenses 1,220 3,400 - -
330,219 215,085 - -
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33. OTHER INCOME
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs"000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Profit on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 2,292 916 1,652 460
Dividend income 11,004 - 11,004 600
Interest income 940 2,262 940 -
Release of contribution for ‘projet d'ensemble’ - 3,780 - 3,780
Other income 3,368 25,590 4,905 9,522
17,604 32,548 18,501 14,362
34, FINANCE COSTS
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Interest expense:
- Bank loans 28,003 12,825 19,337 7,679
- Bank overdrafis 14,172 10,026 1,469 1,624
- Other loans 15,355 3,692 16,624 6,156
- Leases 2,220 KYs! 642 142
Guarantee fee - 1,335 - 1,335
59,750 28,249 38,072 16,936
Net foreign exchange transaction
(gain)loss (8,636) (2,135) 77 (3,774}
51,114 26,114 38,149 13,162
35. OTHER EXPENSES
THE GRQUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs"000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Other expenses 1,278 - 1,278 -
Deferred expenses 2,021 - 2,021
3,299 - 3,299 -
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36. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Notes 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
{a) Net cash generated from/{absorbed by) operations
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 70,353 (14,160} 45,888 {70,897)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 5 31,383 19,841 17,362 18,381
Depreciation of right-of use assels S5A 6,263 4,681 3,006 1,958
Amortisation of intangible assets 9 - 307 - 307
Profit on sale of property, plant
and equipment 33 {2,292) (916) (1,652) (460)
Provision for receivables
impairment 17 - 4,118 - 2,247
Amount recovered on loss allowance 17 (12,007) - (5,428) -
Gain on financial assets at
amortised cost 13 (7,265) {3,691} {30) (3,691}
Provision for retirement benefit
obligations 24 (17,373) {6,324) (15,604) (6,598}
Dividend income a3 (11,004) - (11,004) (600}
Interest income 33 (940) {2,262) (940) -
Interest expense 34 59,750 28,249 38,072 16,936
Deferred expenditure released 7 (3,951) 5,821 {3,951) 10,554
Share of results of associates 11 (3,917) {2,409) - -
Share of results in joint venture 14 2,534 1,726 - -
Deferred income incurredf{released) 25 3,213 - 3,213 (3,780)
Increase in fair value of investment property 8 {201,879) {21,529) (203,400) -
Write off of intangible assets 133 - 133 -
Changes in working capital:
- consumable biological assets (532) 7,897 {532) 7.897
- inventories 134,408 119,323 {79) {2,019)
- trade, group and other receivables 17,947 117,182 (5,447) {1,601)
- trade, group and other payables (18,174) (101,716) 76,320 48,477
Cash generated from/ (absorbed by) operations 46,649 156,138 {64,074) 17,111
(b) Cash and cash equivalents
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs"000 Rs'000
Cash in hand and at bank 25,429 23677 6,760 4,238
Bank overdrafts (note 23) (134,681) (239,795) {34,544) (64,822)
(109,252) (216,118} (27,784) (60,584)

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified

impairment loss was immaterial.
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36. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(¢} Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
At July 1, New Non cash At June 30,
2022 Repayment loan/lease movement 2023
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
2023
THE GROUP
Bank loans 222,211 - 236,314 - 458,525
Other loans 257,705 - 66,366 - 324,071
Lease fiabilities 10,443 {6,621) 6,319 3,990 14,131
441,856 {6,621} 308,999 3,980 796,727
At July 1, At June 30,
2022 Cash flows New lease 2023
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
THE COMPANY
Bank loans 178,061 158,541 336,602
Other loans 180,000 144,090 324,090
Lease liabilities 6,339 {1,63%9) 6,319 11,019
320,940 300,992 6,319 671,711
At July 1, New Discontinued At June 30,
2020 Cash flows Lease operations 2021
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
2022
THE GRQUP
Long term borrowings 190,185 (12,123) 44,150 - 222212
Other loans 246 875 (39,171) 50,000 - 257,704
Lease liabilites 4,796 (2,863) 8,404 106 10,443
441,856 (54,157) 102,554 106 490,359
Al July 1, At June 30,
2021 Cash flows 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
THE COMPANY
Long term borrowings 190,185 (12,124) 178,061
Other loans 130,000 50,000 180,000
Lease liabilities 755 4,268 5,023
320,940 42,144 363,084
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)
(b} Key Management Personnel
THE GROUP AND
THE COMPANY
2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000
Salaries and short term employees benefils 12,566 6,846
Post employment benefits 911 730
13,477 7.576

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At June 30, 2023, the Company's subsidiary had contingent liabilities in respect of floating charge on the assets of
the Company arising in the ordinary course of business amounting to USD 2,000,000 from which it is anticipated that
no material liabilities would arise,

39. COMMITMENTS

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Capital commitments
Contracted but not yet provided in the
financial statements 131,000 295,847 131,000 170,000

40. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

THE COMPANY AS A LESSOR

The Company lease out investment properties. The Company have classified theses leases as operating lease
because they do nol transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the assets.

Maturity analysis of operating lease payments

2023 2022
Rs'000 Rs'000

THE COMPANY

Year 1 12,192 8,196
Year 2 12,801 8.628
Year 3 13,441 8,877
Year 4 14,114 9,219
Year 5 onwards - 24,804

Total 52,548 59,724
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41.

42.

GOING CONCERN

The Group

The Group earned a profit after tax of Rs 70.4 million (2022: loss after tax of Rs15.0 million) for the year-ended June
30, 2023 and had net equity of MUR 3.0 biltion (2022: Rs 2.9 billion). However, the Group's current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by Rs 61.3 million (2022:Net current liabilities of Rs 59 million). The net current asset includes
plots of land for sales by Les Villas de Bel Ombre Limited.The carrying value of these plots of land amount to Rs 49m.
Transactions with related parties have been subordinated whereby they have been agreed to differ payment in case
the current liabililies exceed current assets in order to ease the liquidity position of the group.

The directors have assessed that the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and have considered events after
reporting date as per Note 45 and are satisfied that the Group will continue in business for the foreseeable future. In
addition to the matters considered by the Company in assessing their ability to continue as a going concern, set out
below, the Group's holding company namely Rogers & Co Ltd will provide financial support based on their percentage
of holding for both Agria Limited and Les Villas de Bel Ombre Limitee. Hence, the directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the group's ability to continue as a going concern.
Therefore, the financial statements continue fo be prepared on the going concern basis.

The Company

The Company incurred a profit after tax of Rs 45.8million (2022: loss after tax of Rs 71.8 million) for the year ended 30
June 2023 and had net equity of Rs 2.86 billion (2022: MUR 2.81 billion).

The Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by MUR 236 million (2022: Rs 149 million net current
asset). As at June 30, 2023 the company has earned a profit of Rs 45.9 million which include the payment for
voluntary retirement scheme (VRS) amounting to Rs85m with a view for future cost reduction. The VRS has been
financed through a loan contracted from the holding company, Rogers & Co Ltd. The total borrowing from bank and
related entities as at June 30, 2023 has now reached Rs661m. To ease Agria Limited liquidity situation, the board has
approved future sales of land or its investment held in RHOL. The proceeds will be used for refund of loans.

The Company’s directors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and in
addition to the matters considered by the Company in assessing their ability to continue as a going concern, the
Group's holding company namely Rogers & Co Ltd will provide financial support based on their percentage of holding
for Agria Limited. Hence, the directors are not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon
the group's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefare, the financial statements continue o be prepared on the
going concern basis.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There are no events after the reporting period which may have material effect on the financial statements of the
Company as at 30 June 2023.



